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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EI{t THERAE

Corporate Information
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive directors

Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Man Yan (Chief Executive Officer)

Professor Chan Albert Sun Chi (appointed on 9 May 2016)
Mr. Yang Zuo Ning

Ms. Wong Yuet Ming (resigned on 5 August 2016)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wai

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman)

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung
REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

ESE

HITESE

Bl mrt(FE)
PNBEE(EEHITE)

BRI GEIR (ZER2016F5H9H)
GIERE L E

T AR (FFHER20169F8A5H)

BYFHTES
ITREREE
FEREEBBSK Fiti L
eSSt

ERERE

MRS E(FE)
TRUREAE
FEoR S ABBS K FAE 1

FHERE

MREFE(EE)
IRCRESE
F R EBBS K F A+

REEAE

BwomLE(EE)

e ¥

ERCGREE

FER T EBBS K Fii+

DEIWE

o B 58 55 A
B EEY
Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands



HONG KONG OFFICE

8th Floor, Liven House
61-63 King Yip Street
Kwun Tong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hong Kong:

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd.
Mizuho Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

PRC:
Bank of China Limited

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen's Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

http://www.leemanchemical.com

Annual Report 2016 F 3R

FEWNEE

HE

ki

B
WEEE61-635%
T4 K =812

FRERRT

BE

BEIRITERAF]
BELSEZIRTERAA
IntEiRTT - BEDTT
ERRIT(EB)ERAA
PEIERTT (BB ) BR AR

i
AR AR AT

52 L]

BE) » BEMRITSETENTT
BIEBATAD

FRERMHBFRELERE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

FEERMBRERSE
BENEBREERAR
a5

EEANER183%R

AR L221E

Lk

http://www.leemanchemical.com



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED ¥EX{t THRA A

Chairman’s Statement
TERE
BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded a revenue
of HK$1,814 million, increased by 6.3% as compared to last year; and
a net profit of HK§216 million for the year, representing a decrease of
19.8% as compared to last year. The decrease in net profit for the year
was mainly due to the decrease in product prices.

The Group recorded a gross profit margin of 36.3% for the year,
representing a decrease of 3.3 basis points as compared to last year;
while the net profit margin was recorded 11.9%, representing a decrease
of 3.9 basis points as compared to last year.

PROSPECTS

The Group has completed the construction of the Jiangxi plant. The
first and second phase production lines have been officially put into
production and have contributed profit to the Group since the end of
2015. The management believes that the tough investment period has
passed and with the increase in some chemical product prices, chemical
business is expected to be positive for next year.

The management expects that trial production for new products will begin
gradually in the second quarter of 2017, including chlorinated polyvinyl
chloride, thionyl chloride and styrene-acrylic latex surface sizing agent,
and wishes to put them into official production soonest with profitable
contribution to the group as well.

In addition, the Group has committed to new product research and
development, devoted more resources in employing scientific research
experts who possess rich chemical experience and in acquiring more
scientific research equipment, so as to expand and enhance the internal
research and development team. The management expects that the
Group can be able to develop new products successfully in the near
future that can meet the trend of refined chemical development.

As always, our management team will leverage on our internal technical
innovation and scientific research and development in a pragmatic and
aggressive approach and continue its persistent efforts to bring desirable
return to the shareholders.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers and business partners for their persistent support
throughout the year. In addition, | would also like to take this opportunity
to thank all colleagues and staff for their persistent contribution to the
Group.

On behalf of the Board
Wai Siu Kee

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 Feruary 2017
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED ¥EX{t THRA A

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWN D
RESULTS OF OPERATION

Revenue and net profit attributable to equity holders of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2016 was HK$1,814 million and HK$216
million respectively, representing a increase of 6.3% and a decrease
of 19.8%, as compared to HK$1,706 million and HK$270 million
respectively for last year. The basic earnings per share was HK26.2 cents
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK32.7 cents).

Revenue

The increase in revenue for the year was mainly attributable to the new
Jiangxi operation, and the increase in production volume and selling price
of caustic soda. The Group recorded HK$108 million increase in revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2016. As compared to last year, the
average selling price per ton of methylene chloride and chloroform was
about RMB2,240 and RMB1,860, decreased by approximately 19% and
13% respectively while the average selling price per ton of by-product
caustic soda was about RMB748 which increased by 9% from last year.
The actual production output of the main products for the year was
approximately 280,000 tons for CMS products, 390,000 tons for 100%
dry basis caustic soda and 70,000 tons for hydrogen peroxide.

Due to the decrease in selling price of main products, gross profit
margin of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 decreased
from 39.6% of the last year to 36.3%; while the net profit recorded a
decrease from 15.8% to 11.9%, attributable to the rise of selling and
distribution costs resulted from the increase of product volume.

Selling and distribution costs

Selling and distribution costs incurred for the year ended 31 December
2016 was HK$127 million, representing an increase by 30.5% as
compared to HK$98 million for last year. The increase for the year
mainly attributable to the increase of transportation expenses incurred
in the new Jiangxi operation, as well as the increase of drum package
for product delivery. The selling and distribution costs represented about
7.0% of total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 5.7%
for last year.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses incurred for the year ended 31 December 2016
was HK$133 million, which increased by HK$17 million approximately as
compared to HK$116 million last year. The increase for the year mainly
attributable to the business expansion, depreciation, general expenses
and increase of taxes. The administrative expenses represented about
7.3% of total revenue for the year and 6.8% for last year.

Finance costs

The interest expenses incurred for the year ended 31 December 2016
was HK$25 million, which increased by HK$7 million as compared to
HK$18 million last year. Interest expenses increased during the year was
mainly due to the increase of bank borrowing cost. As at 31 December
2016, the total bank borrowings was HK$1,969 million (31.12.2015:
HK$1,862 million). As at 31 December 2016, the Group maintained
bank balances and cash of approximately HK$228 million (31.12.2015:
HK$253 million) which is sufficient to enable the Group to meet its
future capital expenditure and working capital requirements.

Net exchange loss

Net exchange loss incurred for the year ended 31 December 2016
was HK$83 million, which decreased by HK$11 million approximately
as compared to HK$92 million last year. Net exchange loss decreased
despite the significant depreciation of Renminbi during the year, which
was mainly due to the Group's successful conversion of nearly half of
the Hong Kong dollar borrowings into Renminbi borrowings in the third
quarter of the year.

INVENTORIES, DEBTORS’ AND CREDITORS’ TURNOVER

The inventory turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 was 69 days, representing an increase of 3 days over 66 days last
year.

As a result of tight credit control, the Group’s debtors’ turnover days was
controlled within a favourable level of 35 days for the year ended 31
December 2016 as compared with 30 days last year, which is consistent
with the normal credit terms of 7 days to 60 days granted by the Group
to its customers.

The Group's creditors’ turnover days were 43 days for the year ended 31
December 2016 as compared with 36 days last year which is consistent
with the normal credit terms of 7 days to 45 days granted by the
suppliers to the group.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED ¥EX{t THRA A

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWN D

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The total shareholders' equity of the Group as at 31 December 2016 was
HK$2,342 million (31.12.2015: HK$2,346 million). As at 31 December
2016, the Group had current assets of HK$911 million (31.12.2015:
HK$963 million) and current liabilities of HK$851 million (31.12.2015:
HK$960 million). The current ratio was 1.07 as at 31 December 2016 as
compared to 1.0 at 31 December 2015.

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and credit facilities provided by its principal bankers in Hong
Kong and the PRC. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had outstanding
bank borrowings of HK$1,969 million (31.12.2015: HK$1,862 million).
These bank loans were secured by corporate guarantees provided by
the Company and its certain subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2016,
the Group maintained bank balances and cash of HK$228 million
(31.12.2015: HK$253 million). The Group's net debt-to-equity ratio (total
borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents over shareholders’ equity) as
at 31 December 2016 was 74.3% (31.12.2015: 68.6%).

The Group's liquidity position remains strong and the Group possesses
sufficient cash and available banking facilities to meet its commitments,
working capital requirements and future investments for expansion.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a workforce of about 1,750
people. Salaries of employees are maintained at competitive level and
are reviewed annually, with close reference to the relevant labour market
and economic situation. The Group also provides internal training to
staff and provides bonuses based upon staff performance and profits
of the Group. The Group has not experienced any significant problems
with its employees or disruption to its operations due to labour disputes
nor has it experienced any difficulty in the recruitment and retention
of experienced staff. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
employees.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Apart from those stated in the Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis sections, the Company is exposed to the
following key risks and uncertainties which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to the Companies Ordinance (Cap 622 Laws of Hong Kong).

Risks Relating to Our Industry

Some of our raw materials and products fall within the category
of hazardous chemicals. Any leakage of such chemicals, due to
equipment malfunction or wrongful operations, may result in
personal injury. The Company regards safety as the top priority. To
minimize risks, regular maintenance of our production equipment
is conducted. Important equipment is inspected by “Special
Equipment Safety Supervision Inspection Institute”, to ensure
proper management of our equipment and devices. In addition,
the company strictly executes safety management standardization.
The company regularly conducts safety classes and shares safety
management experience to our production teams. Emergency drills
are organized twice a year to ensure that our staff members have
thorough knowledge in safe production and avoid the occurrence of
wrongful operations.

Credit Risks Relating to Customers

Exposure to bad debts attributable to customers usually intensifies
in a time of weak economic performance. To minimize credit
risks, the management of the Group has appointed dedicated staff
members to handle procedures for determining credit limits, credit
approval and other monitoring procedures, to ensure follow-up with
all receivables in a timely manner. In addition, the Group reviews
the collectability of receivables at the end of a reporting period, to
ensure that sufficient impairment losses are provided for in respect
of uncollectible amount.

Liquidity Risks

In managing liquidity risks, the Group monitors and maintains
cash and cash equivalents at a level which is considered by the
management as sufficient, to satisfy the needs arising from the
Group's operations and to mitigate the effect of fluctuations of cash
flow. The management closely monitors the use of borrowings to
ensure that relevant covenants relating to loans are complied with.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED ¥EX{t THRA A

Management Discussion and Analysis
SR ERE DR

Currency Risks

Debts denominated in foreign currencies expose the Group to
foreign exchange risks. The Group closely manages and monitors
foreign exchange risks to ensure that appropriate measures are
taken in a timely manner. The Group will consider entering into
forward contracts in respect of foreign currencies to mitigate relevant
risks as and when appropriate. As of 31 December 2016, the
Group did not have any outstanding forward contracts in respect of
foreign currencies.

Interest Rate Risks
The Group's interest rate risks are primarily related to its bank
balances and bank borrowings carried at floating interest rates. The

management will closely monitor interest rate risks and consider
hedging material interest rate fluctuations when necessary.
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Corporate Governance Report

iE;E /D#&pﬂ

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
believes that sound and reasonable corporate governance practices
are essential for the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and
maximizing shareholders’ interests. On 1 April 2012, the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“Former CG Code") contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) was amended and
renamed as Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (“New CG Code"). The Board is committed to complying with
the code provisions as stated in the New CG code to the extent that
the directors of the Company (“Directors”) consider it is applicable and
practical to the Company.

The Company has complied with New CG Code during the year of 2016.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions in 2005. All the members of the Board have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company that they have complied
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2016. The Model Code also applies to other
specified senior management of the Group.

11
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Corporate Governance Report
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition and role
The Board comprises:

Executive director

Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Man Yan (Chief Executive Officer)

Professor Chan Albert Sun Chi (appointed on 9 May 2016)
Mr. Yang Zuo Ning

Ms. Wong Yuet Ming (resigned on 5 August 2016)

Independent non-executive director
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

The Board comprises four executive directors (one of whom is the
Chairman and one of whom is the Chief Executive Officer) and
three independent non-executive directors. The three independent
non-executive directors represent more than one-third of the Board.
In addition, three of the independent non-executive directors possess
appropriate legal, professional accounting qualifications and financial
management expertise.

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic development
of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial performance and the
internal controls of the Group's business operations.

The independent non-executive directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective corporate
governance framework. The Board considers that each independent non
— executive director is independent in character and judgment and that
they all meet the specific independence criteria as required by the Listing
Rules. The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation or confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The independent non-
executive directors are explicitly identified in all of the Company's corporate
communications.

The Chairman is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the
agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all directors. Notice
of at least 14 days have been given to all directors for all regular board
meetings and the directors can include matters for discussion in the
agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers in respect
of regular board meetings are sent out in full to all directors within
reasonable time before the meeting. Draft minutes of all board meetings
are circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable time prior to
confirmation.
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Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept
by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings and all directors
have access to board papers and related materials, and are provided with
adequate information in a timely manner, which enable the Board to
make an informed decision on matters placed before it.

During the year under review, 7 full board meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each director is set out below:
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Number of board
meetings attended

Name of director EEpE HESRRE
Ms. Wai Siu Kee Bmimut 7
Mr. Lee Man Yan EXBREE 7
Professor Chan Albert Sun Chi BRATEEIR

(appointed on 9 May 2016) (ZAR2016%F5H9H) 1
Mr. Yang Zuo Ning BIEELE 5
Ms. Wong Yuet Ming TRAZL

(resigned on 5 August 2016) (BHTR2016%8A5H) 5
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony FROR G A 5
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP FECR S HEBBS A F At 3
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei R FRE 4

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on his appointment, so as to ensure that he has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Group
and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. There are also
arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and professional
development to Directors at the Company’s expenses whenever
necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments relating to the Group’s business and the legislative
and regulatory environments to the Directors at Board meetings or
through emails.
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The Directors are committed to complying with Code Provision A.6.5 of
the New CG Code which came into effect on 1 April 2012 on Directors’
training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31
December 2016 to the Company. The type of training received is
summarized below:

BEEAGEESTH12F4A1BBERZ T
XERTABEBESHIZTFRIBKEALS
& HE2016F12A31HILFE 2=
HELHEERNKENFEENR R 2 FE
EEBRR - WERAAQIRBESESE
AIFFERNT ¢

Attending
Reading external
regulatory seminars/
updates programmes
REEERE SEINRHKE
Name of director BEEpns EHER EBRWNEEH
Executive directors HITES
Ms. Wai Siu Kee wmImrt v v
Mr. Lee Man Yan FNREE v v
Professor Chan Albert Sun Chi BRI
(appointed on 9 May 2016) (ZER2016E5H9H ) v v
Mr. Yang Zuo Ning BIEERE v 4
Ms. Wong Yuet Ming T AEZ L
(resigned on 5 August 2016) (BEEFR2016F8H5H) v v
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony TRIREE v v
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP FERFEBBS K Fii 1 v v
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wai MR E v v

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and its current members
include:

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in
accounting, business and legal on the Audit Committee. The composition
and members of the Audit Committee complies with the requirements
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The new written terms of reference
which describe the authority and duties of the Audit Committee were
adopted in March 2012 to conform to the provisions of the New CG
Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company's website.
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The Audit Committee meets regularly to review the Group’s financial
reporting and other information to shareholders, the system of internal
controls, risk management and the effectiveness and objectiveness of
the audit process. The Audit Committee also provides an important
link between the Board and the Company's auditors in matters coming
within the scope of its terms of reference and keeps under review the
independence and objectivity of the auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

During the year, three Audit Committee meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each member is set out below:
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Number of attendance

Name of director EEpE HEEBRE
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei MR AT E 3
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony FROR G A 3
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP FECR S HEBBS A F At 3

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005 and its current
members include:

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

All members of the Remuneration Committee are independent non-
executive directors. The Remuneration Committee advises the Board
on the Group’s overall policy and structure for the remuneration of
directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
ensures that no director or any of his associate is involved in deciding
his own remuneration. The new terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee were adopted in March 2012 to conform to the provisions of
the New CG Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company's website.

In determining the emolument payable to directors, the Remuneration
Committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and the
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has met during the year to determine
the policy for the remuneration of directors and assess performance of
executive directors and certain senior management and all members
have attended in the meeting.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established in March 2012 and its
current members include:

Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman)

Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony

Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP

The majority members are independent non-executive directors. The
Nomination Committee has the duty of reviewing annually the board
structure and composition.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were adopted in
March 2012 to confirm to the provision of the New CG Code, a copy of
which is posted on the Company's website.

The Nomination Committee has met during the year to approve and
adopt its terms of reference, all members have attended in the meeting.

BOARD DIVERSITY

During the year, the Company continued to monitor the board
composition with regard to its diversity policy which requires board
appointments to be made based on merit and candidates to be
considered against an objective criteria, including diversity. In order to
maintain an appropriate mix and balance of talent, skills, experience
and background on the Board, the Nomination Committee developed
measurable objectives to implement this policy and monitored progress
towards achieving these objectives during the year ended 31 December
2016.

The current board composition was also evaluated by reference to,
among other things, the age, gender, cultural and educational background
and professional experience of each director, against the Company's
business model and specific needs.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the fee payable to the

Company's external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided to the Company and its subsidiaries is set out below:
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HK$'000

T

Audit services ET RS 1,456
Non-audit services IERET RS 175
1,631
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The directors of the Company believes diversity is important to enhance
the Board's effectiveness by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and
to maintain high standards of corporate governance. The directors of
the Company will continue to monitor and develop new objectives for
implanting and achieving improved diversity on the Board as and when it
considers appropriate with regard to the specific needs of the Company
and the market from time to time.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group's risk management and internal control systems provide a
clear governance structure, policies and procedures, as well as reporting
mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage it risks across business
operations effectively.

The Group has established a risk management framework, which consists
of the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee and the Risk Management
Taskforce (i.e. Senior Management). The Board of Directors determines
the nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and has the overall responsibility for monitoring the
design, implementation and the overall effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems.

The Group has formulated and adopted Risk Management Policy in
providing direction in identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks. At least on an annual basis, the Risk Management Taskforce
identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement of the Group’s
objectives, and assesses and prioritises the identified risks according to
a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk owners are then
established and assigned for those risks considered to be significant.

In addition, the Group has engaged an independent professional
advisor to provide internal audit services, which assist the Board and the
Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group. Deficiencies in the design and
implementation of internal controls are identified and recommendations
are proposed for improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies
are reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on a timely basis to
ensure prompt remediation actions are taken.
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Risk management report and internal control report are submitted to
the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors at least once a year.
The Board had performed annual review on the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems, including but not
limited to the Group's ability to cope with its business transformation and
changing external environment; the scope and quality of management's
review on risk management and internal control systems; result of
internal audit work; the extent and frequency of communication with the
Board in relation to result of risk and internal control review; significant
failures or weaknesses identified and their related implications; and status
of compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considers the Group's
risk management and internal control systems are effective.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR THE
HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of Securities & Futures Ordinance
(“SFO") and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside information
to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the information
falls within any of the Safe Harbours as provided in the SFO. Before
the information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group ensures
the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Group believes that
the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that
confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would immediately
disclose the information to the public. The Group is committed to ensure
that information contained in announcements are not false or misleading
as to a material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a
material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced
way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing
the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016, the directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong
Kong Accounting Standards made adjustments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable and have prepared the accounts on the going
concern basis. The directors are also responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Group.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. The rights of the
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) are set out in Company's
Articles or Association.

Shareholders of the Company can: (i) convene an extraordinary general
meeting (i) forward enquiries to the board of directors (iii) forward
proposals at shareholders’ meetings and (iv) nominate Directors for
election. Details of relevant procedures are available on the Company’s
website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information about the
Group's performance to shareholders through the publication of interim
results and annual results in a timely manner. In addition to dispatching
circulars, notices and financial reports to shareholders, additional
information is also available to shareholders on the website of the
Company.

The annual general meeting provides a useful platform for shareholders
to raise comments and exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are
encouraged to attend annual general meetings for which the Company
gives at least 21 days' notice. The Chairman and Directors and external
auditors are available to answer questions on the Company's businesses
at the meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
directors. In addition, poll voting procedure is included in the circular to
shareholders dispatched together with the annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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With the growing concemn of society about corporate social responsibility,
and to allow various stakeholders to better understand the environmental,
social and governance policies and measures of Lee & Man Chemical
Company Limited ("Lee & Man Chemical", "Group", “the Group” or "We")
and their effectiveness, the Group has, in accordance with requirements
of Appendix 27 “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
to the Main Board Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock Exchange (HKEX),
prepared this ESG Report (the “report”).

The report covers the Group's main business relating to manufacture of
chemical products in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") during 1
January 2016 to 31 December 2016 (the “reporting period”).

The Board of the Group is responsible for overseeing the strategies,
policies and measures of the Group in environmental, social and
governance areas while the management is responsible for the
implementation thereof, so as to ensure the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and corresponding internal control system
in environment, society and governance and facilitate the Group's
sustainable development.

To ensure that the content and information of the report meets the
expectations of various stakeholders, the Group has invited the respective
management and general staff of different departments to participate
in the preparation of the report. By inspecting the Group's operations,
they can understand the Group’s business in environmental, social and
governance sense and analyze their importance to stakeholders. We have
formulated the following reporting areas for this report:
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Areas under “Environmental,

Social and Governance Reporting

Guide” of HKEX
BRARE - tEREAREESIJEE  Governance Areas of the Group

A.

Al.

A2.

A3.

B1.

B2.

B3.

B4.

Environment
RIE

Emissions

Bemn

Use of Resources
&IR{EH

The Environment and Natural
Resources
RIEBNRKAER

Social

e

Employment

(A

Health and Safety
EREL S

Development and Training

R NS5

Labour Standards
B TAR|

Key Environmental, Social and

Treatment of emissions

Gas emission

Greenhouse gas emission

Hazardous exhaust emission

General waste

Emission reduction measures and results
achieved

Measures for treating hazardous waste
and results achieved

Polices on the use of resources

Energy consumption

Water use

Packaging materials

Energy use efficiency initiatives and
results achieved

Water use efficiency enhancement and
results achieved

Noise protection

Employment relations

Health and safety

Development and training

Labour standards
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Areas under “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting

Guide” of HKEX

Key Environmental, Social and
BRI RE - HEREAMEIEC| 1EE  Governance Areas of the Group

FEBMERWRE - HER
EREE

B5.

B6.

B7.

B8.

Supply Chain Management + Supply chain management - HERER
HEEER
Product Responsibility + Product quality control and responsibility « EfmEEEEME T
EmEE
Anti-corruption + Anti-corruption standards - RESER|
R&ES
Community Investment «  Care for Community - BAEHRE
HRIRE
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION BIRGRE
The Company is committed to environmental protection and has NAI—HBNRERE - WIRRZIARE

adopted various measures and monitoring methods to fulfil its
environmental protection obligations. A safety and environment
division has setup, with dedicated management personnel
for handling safety and environmental protection issues. They
continually follow up with relevant environmental laws and
regulations and keep themselves abreast of relevant updates,
ensuring that various departments of the Company also perform
according to the requirements of the government on environmental
protection and eliminating any behaviors which are in violation of
environmental laws and regulations.

Aspect A1 Treatment of Emissions

The two factories in the PRC, namely Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical
Limited (“Jiangsu L&M Chemical”) and Jiangxi Lee & Man Chemical
Limited (“Jiangxi L&M Chemical”), strictly follow the “Montreal
Protocol” and “Vienna Convention for the Protection of the Ozone
Layer”. Chloromethane production is equipped with devices for
conversion of carbon tetrachloride into chloroform, transforming all
greenhouse gases into products of the Company and effectively
achieving zero emission of carbon tetrachloride.
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Smoke and gas emissions from power stations of Jiangxi L&M
Chemical are in compliance with GB13223-2011 Standard. The
average emission values of our Company during normal operation
are as follows: sulphur dioxide 80mg/m?, nitrogen oxides 40mg/m?,
smoke and dust 18mg/ms3, all meeting emission standards. We
execute 24-hour monitoring of smoke and gas emissions and
real-time data are transmitted to the website of the municipal
environmental protection bureau.

In addition, the two factories in the PRC have their environmental
protection targets on a yearly basis. Through technological
innovation and enhancement of control, we ensure that the
Company's environmental protection efforts meet or outperform
government requirements. Some key performance indicators (KPls)
of 2016 are set out in the table below.
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IHEBEVIEWERERGT A
GB13223-201115% + [EBE TR K A
B EBEA SR : 80mg/m3
BAILY40mg/ms + fEEE18mg/m3 » 15
PR - BR24/\ LR BRER
EMRIR DL

AN - BIAMBE e NRERE
AR BBRMEN  BeEENE
BRARRFREBTEHMEXZNEK
FREVESK - HR2016FEH — LT 2
BT (FERERER) TR

Key
Performance
Indicators
(KPIs)
BRENIESR Name =L B 2016
Al Nitrogen oxides (NO,) emissions RA[WHERE (NOY) Ton It 181.3
Sulphur dioxide (SO,) emissions S LR E (SO,) Ton Mg 285.2
Particulate emission (in terms of smoke ~ FIiA#4a EHEE Ton Mg 59.9
and dust) (AfEEEET)
Al1.2 Total carbon dioxide emission (CO,.) BB — S Lk k'Ton FME 1,521.3
from power plants B8 (CO,0)HER
Chemical carbon dioxide emission Bt ey — a1 b rBEg k'Ton FHA 556.2
Intensity of carbon dioxide emission from B E44 (HE)H=F kg/kwh 1.0
power generator (electricity supply) {bBRHERTER S TR/ TERE
A13 Total hazardous waste EEEYES Ton W& 1,299.5
Al.4 Total general waste —MREEMES Ton M  152,267.0
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KPI A1.5 DESCRIPTION OF MEASURES TO MITIGATE
EMISSIONS AND RESULTS ACHIEVED

1. Measures to mitigate emissions

We have set up recovery devices near water discharge sites for
clean drainage and recover it for water re-utilization to realize
zero emission of clean drainage.

Alkaline renewable recycled wastewater in alkali-burning
workshops is used for salt dissolving, which reducing annual
wastewater discharge by approximately 36,500 tons.

With regard to energy conservation, we adhere to standardized
and regulated high-standard management of energy-saving.
Unit energy consumption of sodium hydroxide products is
approximately 314 kgce/t (national benchmark value is 325
kgce/t and national average value in 2016 is 329 kgce/t),
outperforming industry standard.

2. Results achieved

Jiangsu L&M Chemical was consecutively awarded “Advanced
Entity in Ecological Construction and Environmental Protection
Work” by Changshu Economic Development Zone in 2014
and 2015.

Jiangsu L&M Chemical won the “Suzhou Circular Economy
Demonstration Enterprise” title in 2015.

Jiangxi L&M Chemical won the “Excellent Enterprise in
Industrial Park” Award from Ruichang City Matou Town
Industrial Zone in 2015.

KPI A1.6

Description of how hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved

Different types of hazardous wastes of Jiangsu L&M Chemical are
processed in strict accordance with the requirements of environmental
laws and regulations by external qualified entities. We exercise whole-
process control over compliance in the course of production, collection,
storage, transfer and subsequent disposal of different types of hazardous
wastes. Concurrently, we have enhanced our source management.
Through optimizing production techniques, we gradually realize recycling
and re-utilization and reduction in exhaust generation.
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Jiangxi L&M Chemical also strictly follows environmental protection
requirements in processing hazardous wastes. Residual liquid of fluorine
chemical projects is processed by incineration devices. Other wastes are
processed by external qualified entities. The Company actively optimizes
production techniques, strengthens source management and reduces
exhaust generation, with a view to maximizing recycling and re-utilization.

ASPECT A2 POLICIES ON THE USE OF RESOURCES

Production at the two factories in the PRC involves such fuels as raw
coal, liquefied natural gas, diesel and industrial water. We emphasize and
encourage saving and efficient use of resources and have strengthened
recycling and re-utilization to avoid wastage of resources. Some key
performance indicators (KPIs) of 2016 are listed below:
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HK ESG
Guide
EBESG Unit 2016
&5l Name =L Efy 20165
A2.1 Total coal consumption BOEERE T RREH 9,889.5
Coal consumption (for electricity supply) BoRREE (ANHE) T RKEH 6,610.6
Total chemical coal consumption B TR EREE T RKREH 5,826.2
Chemical coal consumption BME T NS T IRREE 4,631.9
(for electricity supply) (ARHE)
Natural gas consumption (for electricity RAFEFRE(ARESE T RKEH 0
generation)
Fuel consumption for boil fire ignition and BOREREE (AR AT IE T RKREH 1.8
diesel motor power generation BhN RS EEE
A2.2 Water discharge IREERE Cubic meter 226,083.0
SR
A25 Total amount of packaging materials RmBBREMHHEE Ton I 24,549.0
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KPI A2.3 DESCRIPTION OF ENERGY USE EFFICIENCY
INITIATIVES AND RESULTS ACHIEVED

The two factories in the PRC have achieved the following results
in energy efficiency:

1. In places with high temperature reactive gas (e.g chlorinated reactive
gas from chlorinated methane device) and burning tail gas (e.g high
temperature pyrolysis gas of tetrafluoroethylene device, incinerator
tail gas, tail gas from anhydrous hydrogen fluoride device and hot-
blast stove), residual heat boiler or heat exchanger are installed for
recycling steam or hot water so as to enhance energy use efficiency
and lower energy consumption.

2. Steam condensate water from production is recycled for water
replenishment of boilers and residual heat boiler, air conditioner
heat production and salinization and pure water production,
reducing water consumption and steam consumption.

3. Circulating fluidized bed boiler is adopted and heat efficiency
reaches above 900%.

4. Tail gas from coal-burning boilers or incinerators is used for
combustion. Fuel consumption is reduced.

5. Circulating water of chloralkali plants and fluoride plants is
reasonably allocated. Water pumps at circulating water stations are
modified to reduce hydraulic head and lower electricity consumption
for circulating water.

6. Highly efficient electric machines are adopted for air compressors,
compressors, freezers, draught fans and pumps. Inverter speed
control devices or other electricity-saving measures are adopted for
reducing electricity consumption and cost.
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KPl A2.4 ENHANCEMENT OF WATER EFFICIENCY AND
RESULTS ACHIEVED

At Jiangsu L&M Chemical, we have formulated a stringent management
system as well as assessment indicators for water consumption and
water conservation. Per-unit water consumption is assessed on a daily
basis. We continually explore potential aspects where saving on water
consumption is possible and have adopted numerous water-saving
measures. According to the water balance tests for the whole factory that
we regularly conduct, water reuse rate for the whole factory is 98.54%;
indirect chilled water recycling rate is 99.15%; and steam condensed
water recycling rate is 92.81%. In 2013, we were awarded the “Water
— saving Enterprise in Jiangsu Province” title and were the only chemical
enterprise in Suzhou that was awarded this honor.

At Jiangxi L&M Chemical, we also actively optimize production techniques,
with a circulated water use rate of 99.26% and repeated water use rate
of 98.23%. We also obtained two utility model patents, namely “retention
basin used for recycling resin tower reused wastewater” and “disintegration
basin used for recycling polymerized wastewater”.

ASPECT A3 THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
The environment and natural resources

The Company emphasizes and encourages conservation and the efficient
use of resources. Through the improvement of environmental friendly
techniques in production, we have achieved continual reduction of
pollutant emissions and avoided resources wastage through recycling
and reuse. Concurrently, through establishing an energy management
system and 1SO14001 environmental management system, we have
incorporated the ideas of environmental protection and energy saving
in our daily operation and production, in advocacy of green office and
production environment.
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Noise Protection:

We have adopted “low noise” equipment and reduced noise at its
sources through installing vibration proof pads. In addition, we have
set up greenbelts near noise sources and factory boundaries based on
reasonable noise sources layout. Indoor sound insulation doors and
windows have been installed to ensure that noise at factory boundaries
meets the requirements of the Atmospheric Noise Emission Standard For
Factory Areas of Industrial Enterprises.

The safety and environment division of the Company conducts periodic
testing of noise levels on a monthly basis and showcases results on-site
so as to ensure factory noise meets relevant standards.

We provide employees exposed to noises with protective devices such as
anti-noise earplugs and ear protective devices and shorten their working
duration at noise sources so as to ensure their physical and mental well-
being.

B. SOCIETY
Aspect B1 Employment relations:

Talent is the key to corporate development, especially for a chemical
enterprise. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately
1,750 full-time employees and KPI B1.1 is as follows:

Total Workforce by Gender
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Both of the two factories in the PRC provide accommodation
and transportation pick-up service for the staff. Keeping track
of the conditions in the labour market and trends of economic
development, the Group makes reasonable adjustments to staff
remuneration every year to keep it at a competitive level. Year-end
bonuses are distributed based on the performance of individual
employees and of the Group profit. Factory areas are equipped
with modern equipment and hardware to create a comfortable and
clean environment for employees. Last year, the Group established
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a research institute, comprising a research and development # o TES iR IEENES LG
team led by academicians of Chinese Academy of Sciences and
a number of professors, in support of maintaining our status as a
high-tech enterprise and our future development. A breakdown of
our employees by positions and academic qualifications is set out
below:
Total Workforce by Positions RILAB D
831
47.5%
900 ¢ o ) 50.0%
202 ;
800 !.! 45.0%
700 40.0%
600 35.0%
30.0%
500 371
(21.2%) 25.0%
400 306 a0
(17.5%) 242 20.0%
300 a_ 6 (13.8%)
5 _ & 15.0%
200 10.0%
100 5.0%
0 0.0%
Management R&D Technical Supportive
position position position position
EIRfEAL T rahL Bz L)) v
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Academic Qualifications Distribution Chart

BREKFSHHE

College: 885

(50.6%)

Technical
secondary
school: 188
GEE
(10.7%)

Hith :

Other: 278

(15.9%)

Bachelor mCollege ™ Technical secondary school Others

AR mAE mRE s Hi

Aspect B2 Health and Safety [EEB2 REHEZZ

“Safety Production Commitment” of Lee & Man Chemical stipulates Bt (L2 EEAHFS)IEL  BR

that we shall seek to achieve the best business performance of zero TEEEREW  TMEEETIRE T

occurrence of major incidents and no damage to employees' health BUERBE R ERREEE - BEGR5LE

or to the environment, and shall actively promote the corporate REREX  SELEEESNE -

culture of safety production and create a safety production

atmosphere.

Safety Performance of Lee & Man Chemical 2016 2016F BN LI RERE

KPI

BASEEX Name 2016

EE =1 20165

B2.1 Mortality T 0
Mortality rate PR 0

B2.2 Work-related injury cases TIBREEL 9
Working days lost due to work-related injury AT{EEATIEA S 0
Injury rate/million working hours BEIRKEGEEX 3.25
Incidence of occupational diseases BERERE 0

30



KPI B2.3

The Group strictly follows relevant national laws and regulations
relating to occupational health. We provide free-of-charge body
checkup, once a year, at hospitals qualified for occupational disease
examination, to ensure our staff's physical well-being.

Aspect B3 Development and Training

The Group emphasizes staff safety training, skill training and career
development education. A comprehensive training system is in
place and improvement measures are formulated according to

training results so as to continually enhance training effectiveness.

Staff training provided by the two factories of the Group free of
charge in 2016:

1. Provided special operation work permit training in 21 areas for
576 employees.

2. Conducted specialized technical training in production skills
in the form of ‘team gathering’ for all production staff every
month.

3. Conducted departmental skill training in at least 2 areas

KPI B3.1& B3.2 Training Performance of
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Lee & Man Chemical FHlRE
2016
2016%F
Number of Percent of  Average training
Categories people total staff number hours per person
i A (EE-PN 4] AT REF
Position Above Supervisor 172 9.8% 74
AR FEUE
Below Supervisor 1,238 70.7% 74
FEUAT
Gender Male 1,173 67% 74
nER e
Female 237 13.5% 74
z
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Aspect B4 Labour Standards

Pursuant to laws and regulations such as national Labour Law
and Regulation on Work-Related Injury Protection, the Group has
established a comprehensive remuneration system, recruitment
procedure and staff career development plan, etc. We provide social
security and welfare packages (5 insurances and housing fund),
annual leave, festival subsidy and free meals on working days. The
Group has also formulated appropriate Staff Manual and policies,
clearly putting forward Lee & Man Chemical's 7 corporate spirits:
Integrity, faimess, attitude, efficiency, perseverance, innovation and
team spirit, creating sound and harmonious labour relations for our
staff.

We act in accordance with international human rights standards as
stipulated in The United Nations Convention on the Rights of the
Child and the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, including
prohibition of employing child labour and protecting minors,
prohibition of forced labour, safety and health, freedom of forming
labour organizations, prohibition of discrimination, prohibition of
unfair punishment, working hours and wage standards, etc.

Regarding staff complaints, the Group has established a
comprehensive system. Staff can provide their feedbacks through
the general manager's mailbox, e-mails and ‘DingTalk” and such
feedbacks are to be dealt with and resolved in a timely manner.

Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management

All of our suppliers and supply chain have undergone stringent
assessment and supervision. The Group undertakes detailed
assessment of its suppliers every year and eliminates those which
fail the assessment. Incoming raw materials are tested and stored
in specific regions according to pre-set standards, guaranteeing that
every batch of raw materials used for production is controllable and
trackable.

The Group possesses a comprehensive management system and
undergoes annual assessment of its quality environment system
and certificate renewal assessment by SGS-CSTC Standards
Technical Services Co., Ltd. regularly every year. In addition, pursuant
to national requirements, we have obtained safety, production and
operation permit relating to hazardous chemicals and regularly
undergo random testing and inspection by relevant government
departments, attaining a random inspection pass rate of 100%.

In case of complaints about raw material quality, our procurement
department and quality control department will assign staff to
communicate with suppliers for tackling problems in time, so that
production can follow the original process parameters and is not
affected.

32

ETHEIB4 T %H|

REE RS A - If%ﬁ*@éﬂmfﬁﬂ:if
Al KERITENTMEIE - BER
B BIBESBEAAES  RHARKR—
T FR HEEY RBIEEEE
TEH - KETRHIE S BENCE TFMM)
%DBZ”* Eﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁﬁkifﬂﬁt%ﬁi

B s MR~ ]
N BIF l[% ﬁ{@% 32 —Era
MIRIFHSERRE -

HRIRE A BIC BRI A %) A RA
%E§>$%LZ!%A%ﬁ+ﬁMﬁ
B BT T IR R
A BIFREUEST  BRERRS 4
BTEMAM - BB - B TFAY
w5 - TR T A RS -

SEHHUB TR HIET —Ex=E
MR BTRAILUEBAKEEEN B
- SIS EZRBEETRE - T RE
RAE - BRR

[EEBs HERERE

B ER - HEREETT T BRIGART
BMEE  SESFHHHERETH
AOFEMEL - YREZTRBAOM
FERETTEN - ERRE R BHZIRARE
MREE TR AR E RIFR - RE
HEEFERNE—HURRH AR - 78 -

SEHETENBRER BFTHEX
SCSBIENAIHEKAE SRR AET
FEEZNRBFRFZNRE - WIKEEH
KR E S ’f%tuMHF%E’J 2 EE -
KEERNTAE % XY A 78
EBFIe AR - HE - TWRA%/E'\T%‘ZHOOO/O °

—BBERMRERF - FEINRE
ek B B EE e MR - RE
FH ?ﬁ%ﬁmﬁ’]lg‘uﬁf T - T

2 4

Ll

><ll\
&
Iﬂh;ﬂ:

;



Aspect B6 Product Quality Control and Responsibility

L&M Chemical has passed the certification of quality and
environment management system 1SO9001:2008 and
ISO14001:2004.

The Company has comprehensive product execution standards
and possesses advanced testing equipment such as ICP, gas
chromatograph, liquid chromatograph, ion chromatograph, Karl
Fischer moisture titrator, potentiometric titrator etc, ensuring
that chemical products meet the relevant production indicators’
requirements during the process of production.

Before delivery, every batch of products will undergo testing in
accordance with our corporate standards and national standards
and qualified products will undergo differential storage. Every batch
of products for sale will be delivered together with a product testing
report as well as hazardous chemicals SDS, emergency contact
telephone number etc, to ensure traceability of product safe use,
timely support from our sales department and convenient enquiry
in case of after-sale problems.

Aspect B7 Anti-corruption Standards

The Group adheres to business integrity, abides by business ethics
and resolutely resists corruption and bribery. According to the Staff
Manual prepared by Lee & Man Chemical, new employees will
receive training documents before their admission. Money extortion,
bribery and gift or reward used for bribery will be penalized by
way of terminating labor contract. The general manager's mailbox
has been made available and it is opened at least once a week by
specific personnel. Such arrangement is considered an effective tool
for preventing corruption and bribery acts. For the year ended 31
December 2016, the Group had no corruption complaint cases.

Aspect B8 Care for Community

Lee & Man Chemical has instilled corporate social responsibility
into the company's core values and employees’ mindset. Following
“Education is the foundation of national development in the long
run” as advocated by the nation, Jiangsu L&M Chemical focuses
on investment in and renovation of local educational facilities.
Donations have been made to local schools in Changshu, Jiangsu
Province. The Group also actively sponsors sports events and
contributes to the promotion of sport spirit. The two factories’ labour
union in the PRC have respectively organized visit to a nursing
home for the elderly and provided assistance for flood control work
of Jiujiang municipal government, and won recognition from the
community.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ESNEREEERN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. WAI Siu Kee, aged 72, Chairman of the Company who joined
the Group since its establishment in 1976. Ms. Wai has more than 51
years of experience in the manufacturing industry. She is responsible
for the development of corporate strategies, corporate planning and
overall management of the Group and in particular the marketing and
development of the business of the Group. Ms. Wai is the honorary
permanent president of the Hong Kong Baptist University Foundation. Ms.
Wai is the mother of Mr. Lee Man Yan, the Executive Director and Chief
Executive Office of the Group.

Mr. LEE Man Yan, aged 39, the member of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Committee of Jiangxi and Chief Executive Office of the
Group. He joined the Group in 2000. Mr. Lee is in charge of the
corporate and strategic planning of the Group, and is responsible for the
management operations, procurement, staff management and public
relations in the PRC of the business. He graduated from the University of
British Columbia, Canada with a bachelor's degree in commerce. Mr. Lee
was awarded Young Industrialist Award of Hong Kong 2013 and Young
Entrepreneur Award 2013. He is appointed as member of Court of the
Hong Kong Baptist University and Committee Member of Hong Kong
Young Industrialists Council. Mr. Lee is a son of Ms. Wai Siu Kee, the
Group's Chairman.

Professor Chan Albert Sun Chi, aged 66, CPPCC National Committee,
JP, an Executive Director and Chief Strategist of the Group. He joined
the Group in 2016. He is a world-renowned organic chemist, Member
of the Chinese Academy of Sciences, and President Emeritus of Hong
Kong Baptist University. He is responsible for the planning of the Group's
overall business and long term strategies, formulating new product
development directions, leading the Group's research and development
team for enhancement of scientific research technology, commercialising
its research results and introducing new products into the market.
Professor Chan received his bachelor degree from International Christian
University in Japan in 1975 and his MSc and PhD degrees from the
University of Chicago respectively in 1976 and 1979. Upon graduation
from the University of Chicago, he started an industrial career at the
Monsanto Corporate Research Laboratories where he had worked for
13 years, rising through the ranks of Senior Research Chemist, Research
Specialist, Senior Research Specialist and finally Monsanto Fellow. Since
joining the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1994, Professor Chan
had served as Chair Professor and Head of the Department of Applied
Biology and Chemical Technology, Dean of the Faculty of Applied Science
and Textiles, and Vice President (Research Development). He was the
4th President and Vice-Chancellor of Hong Kong Baptist University in
2010-2015. Professor Chan's research areas include the application of
chiral catalysts in asymmetric syntheses and their industrial applications,
development of pharmaceutical products and related processes,
pharmaceutical and nutritional products based on Chinese medicines,
new organic chemical process and their industrial applications, research
and industrial applications of green sciences, novel material discovery
and development, etc. Elected as Member of the Chinese Academy of
Sciences in 2001, Professor Chan has received numerous prestigious
awards including State Natural Science Award of China (second class),
Lectureship Award by The Society of Synthetic Organic Chemistry, Japan
and Invitation Fellowship of Japan Society for the Promotion of Science.
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Mr. YANG Zuo Ning, aged 55, an Executive Director of the Group and
General Manager of Jiangxi Lee & Man Chemical Limited. He joined
the Group in 2006. He is a national acclaimed senior engineer and
has 34 years of production experience in chlor-alkali industries. He is
responsible for the strategic planning, general management and advisory
of production engineering to the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WONG Kai Tung, Tony, aged 74, an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Group. He has been a practicing lawyer in Hong Kong
since 1968 and has also been admitted as a solicitor in England and
Wales. He is currently a consultant at Messrs. Hastings & Co., Solicitors
and Notaries.

Mr. WAN Chi Keung, Aaron BBS, JP, aged 67, an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Group. He holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration of the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master
Degree in Buddhist studies of the University of Hong Kong, also an
associate of the Institution of Business Agents, a member of the Land
Institute (London), an associate of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators,
a fellow of The Institute of Administrative Accounting and a fellow of The
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. He is engaged in the business
of property and chattel valuation and auction and has over 33 years of
related experience. Mr. Wan serves as an independent non-executive
director in CNC Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8356).

Mr. HENG Victor Ja Wei, aged 39, an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Group. He is a partner of Morison Heng, Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a master of science degree of the Imperial College
of Science, Technology and Medicine, the University of London. He
is a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Heng serves as an independent non-executive director in China Fire
Safety Enterprise Group Limited (Stock Code: 0445), Matrix Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1005), SCUD Group Limited (Stock Code: 1399)
and Best Food Holding Company Limited (formerly known as Lee & Man
Handbags Holding Limited) (Stock Code: 1488). He also serves as the
company secretary and authorized representative of China Life Insurance
Company Limited (Stock Code: 2628).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAM Hiu Fung, aged 46, Deputy General Manager of Jiangsu Lee &
Man Chemical Limited. He joined the Group in 2005 and has 23 years
of experience in financial management. He holds a bachelor's degree in
Accountancy from City University of Hong Kong and a master's degree in
International Business from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is responsible for the supervision on the financial
matters, tax issues and general management.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. HUI Jun, Dan, aged 62, Deputy General Manager of Jiangsu Lee
& Man Chemical Limited. He joined the Group in 2005 and has over
35 years experience in sales, marketing and business development
in overseas and PRC enterprises. He is responsible for developing the
Company’s sales strategies, exploring potential markets and logistics
management.

Mr. XIA Xu Dong, aged 42, Deputy General Manager of Jiangsu Lee &
Man Chemical Limited. He joined the Group in 2006 and has 20 years
of production experience in chlor-alkali industries. He is responsible for
the supervision and general management of production department of
Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Limited.

Dr. TSE Man Kin, aged 45, Director of Research & Development of the
Group. He joined the Group in 2008 and has 22 years of experience
in chemical research and research management. He holds a Ph.D in
Chemistry from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and is a member
of the American Chemical Society. He is responsible for the research and
development of the Group.

Mr. WU Zeng Long, aged 47, Director of Sales of Jiangsu Lee & Man
Chemical Limited. He joined the Group in 2007 and has 24 years of
experience in sales, marketing and business development. He holds a
bachelor's degree in applied chemistry. He is responsible for sales and
logistics activities of Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical Limited.

Mr. CHEAH Ming Huat, aged 44, Deputy General Manager of Jiangxi
Lee & Man Chemical Limited. He joined the Group in 2011 and has 19
years of experience in financial management. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and chartered
accountant of Malaysian Institute of Accountants. He is responsible for
the supervision on the financial matters, treasure management, internal
control, tax issues and general management.

Mr. ZHOU Ai Hua, aged 41, Deputy General Manager of Jiangxi Lee &
Man Chemical Limited. He joined the Group in 2006 and has 19 years
of production engineering experience in refined chemicals and chloralkali
industries. He is responsible for the production of fluorochemical and
chlor-alkali chemical and general management of Jiangxi Lee & Man
Chemical Limited.

Mr. QIU Yi Lin, aged 44, Deputy General Manager of Jiangxi Lee &
Man Chemical Limited. He joined the Group in 2006. He acquired
qualification of mechanical engineer in 2003 and has 20 years of
management experience in power station and electrical and mechanical
equipment. He is responsible for the operation and general management
of power station as well as facility maintenance of Jiangxi Lee & Man
Chemical Limited.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group is
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of chemical products.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 50.

An interim dividend of HK5 cents per share amounting to
HK$41,250,000 in aggregate was paid to the shareholders during the
year.

The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK4
cents per share to the shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members on 18 May 2017, amounting to HK33,000,000 in total,
subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to shareholders represented the aggregation of the
share premium and retained profits of HK$63,096,000 (2015:
HK$66,628,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 143.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Ms. Wai Siu Kee (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Man Yan (Chief Executive Officer)

Professor Albert Chan Sun Chi (appointed on 9 May 2016)
Mr. Yang Zuo Ning

Ms. Wong Yuet Ming (resigned on 5 August 2016)

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Wong Kai Tung, Tony
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron BBS JP
Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei

In accordance with the provisions of the Company's Articles of Association,
Mr. Wan Chi Keung, Aaron and Mr. Heng Victor Ja Wei will retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each of the other independent non-executive
directors is the period up to his retirement as required by the Company's
Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Ms. Wai Siu Kee has entered into a service agreement with the Company
on 1 September 2014 for a period of three years, which will continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by either party by three months’
prior written notice.

Mr. Lee Man Yan has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an initial period of three years commencing 16 August 2016, which
will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party by
three months' prior written notice.

Mr. Yang Zuo Ning has renewed into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed term of one year commencing 9 May 2016, which
may be terminated by either party by three months’ prior written notice.

Professor Chan Albert Sun Chi has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing 9 May 2016,
which will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party
by three months prior notice.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of directors
and chief executives of the Company and their associates in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance
(the "SFO")) which have been notified of the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code") of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

(a) Long positions in shares of the Company

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of issued
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Percentage of the
issued share capital

Name of director Capacity ordinary shares held of the Company
EEpA -37) FriFE 81T EARARE T
HERBE RAF L
Lee Man Yan Held by controlled corporation 618,750,000 75%
(note)
FXRE HEEEERE (Btat)

note: These shares are held by Fortune Star Tradings Ltd (“Fortune Star").

(b) Long positions in shares of the associated corporations of

Mfat - £ it BR 9 J 8 Fortune Star Tradings Ltd
([Fortune Star])#74 °

(b) RARTEBEEZRDER

the Company
Name of Number of Percentage of the
associated issued ordinary issued shares of the
Name of Director  Capacity company shares held associated company
Frise BT I MEEE
EEpE g4 HEEEER ZRREE BERITRABSL
Lee Man Yan Beneficial owner Fortune Star 45 (note) 45%
FXE EREAA (Brat)

note: As Fortune Star owns more than 50% of the Company, Fortune Star is an
associated corporation of the Company under the SFO. The issued share capital
of Fortune Star is owned by Mr. Lee Man Yan, a Director, as to 45% and Mr. Lee
Wan Keung as to the remaining 55%. Ms. Wai Siu Kee is a director of Fortune
Star.
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Other than disclosed above, none of the directors or the chief executive,
or any of their associates, had any interests or short positions in any
shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations, which had to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 14 December
20071, under which the directors or the chief executive of the Company
or their associates may be granted options to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

Details of the share option scheme and movement of the share options
during the year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2016, shareholders (other than directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had interests and short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company
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HR
RRRERO. BT Z EiBAL

Number of
issued ordinary

Percentage of the
issued share capital

Name of shareholders Capacity shares held of the Company

B Rt & 54 ZEREAE LB BT

BAT DL

Fortune Star Beneficial owner 618,750,000 75%
EnEEA

Other than disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Company B¢ FXXFriREE4N - 20165128318 - #1E

has not been notified by any persons (other than directors and chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the year are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements, some of which are also
the disclosable connected transaction pursuant to Listing Rules. In the
opinion of the independent non-executive directors, these transactions
entered into by the Group were:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there was no
available comparison, on terms that were fair and reasonable so far
as the shareholders of the Company were concerned;

(iif) either (a) in accordance with the terms of the agreements; or (b)
where there were no such agreements, on terms no less favourable
than those available to or from independent third parties; and

(iv) within the relevant cap amounts as agreed by the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions which need

to be disclosed as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”, no
contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company and
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly and indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A review and outlook of the business of the Company and a discussion
and analysis of the Group's performance during the year and the
material factors underlying its results and financial position are provided
in the Chairman's Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
respectively from pages 4 to 5 and pages 6 to 10 of this Annual Report.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The key risks and uncertainties facing the Company as required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
laws of Hong Kong) are disclosed in Management Discussion and
Analysis pages 6 to 10 of this Annual Report.

GROUP’'S ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group commits to environmental protection and adopts various
measures to ensure its duties of protecting the environment. The
Company has established HSE department, filled with well qualified
personnel, to continually follow-up on relevant environment-related laws
and provisions, and to ensure that all departments within the Company
comply these regulations without any violation.

Particulars of the Group's environmental policies and performance are set
out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 19 to
32 of this Annual Report.

MAIJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five
largest customers were less than 209% of total turnover.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers were approximately 69% of the Group's total purchases
and the purchases attributable to the Group's largest supplier were
approximately 38% of the Group's total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders which, to the
knowledge of the directors, owned more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital had any interest in the share capital of any of the five
largest customers of the Group.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities. The permitted
indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors as required
by the provisions of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Ms. Wai Siu Kee

Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 February 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2 BEN RS

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lee & Man
Chemical Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 50 to 142,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED ¥EX{t THRA A

Independent Auditor’s Report

B AR S

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BREITEE

REETFER

RREFRISHERBEATHNERALE R
REAMEAMBREANBTRA/EENS
H o BUHEREAEATENEREAMBR
KEHABRBEETREN - AT TEEE
LEIREHEBOER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REF WA RERREESNSEE

Valuation of construction in progress and deposit paid for technical knowhow for the rights to erect and
operate a manufacturing plant for the production of a new chemical product and the rights to distribute such

product (collectively the “Project”)

HRTENEE  URBHCLTEGREME N BEREEREAZERH 7 1 ([HE J) %9 F MK a] &

We identified the valuation of the construction in
progress and deposit paid for technical knowhow for the
rights to erect and operate a manufacturing plant for the
production of a new chemical product and the rights to
distribute such product as a key audit matter due to their
significance to the consolidated financial statements
and the management judgement involved in identifying
impairment indicators for the Project.
RITERMEERTIENGE AR TERBE
TR ) BB 122 o 40 8 R I A2 7 o B 99 S AR T 2 A~ O Al
MBFT & RAREAFE  AREHA BRI
BEEWMNS KR EIR BT ZIE B REERAHE -

As detailed in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements, the deposit paid amounted to approximately
HK$93,245,000 as at 31 December 2016. The Group
is in the process of constructing the new plant which is
scheduled to complete in 2017, with a carrying amount
of approximately HK$102,765,000. Based on the
management assessment, no indication of impairment
of the Project has been identified.

mE B IS AR M T 21 it - BE 20166 12 A 31
H  BEXf&EI &4 /5932450008 T « AEBEIEHE
BB E - STEIR2017F %K - RESBAOA
102,765,000/ 7T  HRBELE Rk - BEHE A
BRETR -

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the management
assessment on the valuation of the Project included:
AT ERENEZIAB NIRRT
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Understanding the management assessment in identifying
impairment indicators;

TR E R B A BT

Evaluating the management assessment on whether
evidence is available of any discrepancy in construction
progress of the manufacturing plant against construction
plan;
AZEEENTEREEERBRTIHFEE T ER EET
HEEERER

Understanding how the management reviewed the capital
expenditure against their budget plan;

TRERENAREBE I BBEEATH

Performing site visit, interviewing project team and
obtaining progress report of plant construction from the
management to understand the status of the construction
work; and

ETRISER - HRIARER - URREEEEEURE
EREERE - THETITRN M

Assessing the management’s identification of any
significant changes with an impact on the Group that have
taken place during the year, or will take place in the near
future, with reference to available market data.
HEERE2ZREMISEIE - MEEAFERTAH
REBBEEHAEEEBEVENEARL -



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED ¥EX{t THRA A

Independent Auditor’s Report
18 M A% BAD ¥

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

«  Condlude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Ip Chiu Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 February 2017
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
AeBEmRHEMEEERER

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (E(ZE2016F12A31HIEFE)

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hist FET FHT
Revenue WA 6&7 1,813,851 1,705,879
Cost of sales SHER A (1,155,893) (1,030,707)
Gross profit EA 657,958 675,172
Other income HA WA 8 87,042 84,765
Other gain and losses HAh e M EE 9 8,102 (1,090)
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SHA AR (127,268) (97,520)
General and administrative expenses THER (132,717) (116,002)
Research and development cost RPN (45,169) (76,626)
Finance costs LRV ®IN 11 (24,803) (17,984)
Net exchange loss b 5 FE R (82,650) (92,356)
Share of loss of joint ventures R A EER (545) (2/415)
Profit before taxation MR EL BT F 339,950 355,944
Income tax expense FriSfisz i 10 (123,755) (86,266)
Profit for the year F 1A% ) 11 216,195 269,678
Other comprehensive (expense) income  H{h 2 (X H) ik
Items that will not be reclassified to AT BB A EE Bl
profit or loss: HH :
Exchange differences arising on translation ] HR B 1 A O B 2R (136,212) (95,675)
Share of other comprehensive expense EliEEEbEEMEE
of joint ventures T (1,920) (2,570)
Net gain on hedging instruments in RemEHPITAZ
cash flow hedges R ER 184 632
Other comprehensive expense for the year FAHEMEET (137,948) (97,613)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEW AR 78,247 172,065
Earnings per share BREF 12
Basic (HK cents) EARCGE) 26.2 32.7
Diluted (HK cents) 5 (L) N/ATE B 32.7
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(At 31 December 2016) (20164 12A318)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Investment property

Intangible assets

Deposits paid for the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Interests in joint ventures

Loan to a joint venture

Other deposit

Deferred tax asset

Current assets

Inventories

Prepaid lease payments

Trade and other receivables

Tax recoverable

Loan to a joint venture

Amount due from a joint venture
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to related companies
Taxation payable

Derivative financial instruments

Bank borrowings — due within 1 year

Net current ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

FRBEE
E NI e
BENEEFR
BREME
BV EE

BEVE BEMREZ

BEfETE
AEPE I EE
REDEZER
HibeT&
RIETRIEEE

RBEE

&

BENEEFER

FEWE 5 N BA 7R

e IR

A“ﬁ%ZEM
B EUGRIR

RITHEBR MRS

REBEE

FE N % &ﬁﬁﬂm
JT’ETH%R’IE
PTHEERMIA

RITIER— 1A EIE

REBEEFE

REERRBAE
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2016
HK$'000
TET

3,519,668
112,496
61,798
2,254

115,836
16,693
95,365
93,245
23,317

3,840,672

231,846
3,022
425,880
7,951
14,603
228,091

911,393

355,400
2,602
48,681
20
444,759

851,462

59,931

3,900,603

2015
HK$'000
TAT

3,295,041
122,609
46,901
3,570

48,964
19,158
99,387
23,780

3,659,410

206,715
3,222
379,206
11,976
93,652
15,138
252,721

962,630

301,886
3,793
42,517
42
611,444

959,682

2,948

3,662,358



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B BRI R

n‘/—_l_\
(At 31 December 2016) (#2016%F12A31H)
2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt FExT T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBERS
Other payables JE ELfth 5RIE 27 26,299 65,506
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFIARE 10 8,008 -
Bank borrowings — due after 1 year RITER— 15F& 5 29 1,524,271 1,250,390
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA 22 - 184
1,558,578 1,316,080
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,342,025 2,346,278
Capital and reserves BXRL#EE
Share capital [N 30 82,500 82,500
Reserves (] 2,259,525 2,263,778
2,342,025 2,346,278

The consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 142 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28

February 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wai Siu Kee
BLH
CHAIRMAN
*E
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
BEHITE

FapSEE: Rk



Annual Report 2016 F 3R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

1: >%£ \ %54 E}J %
n\/-_]_\
(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#EZE2016F12A31HIEFE)
Non- Safety Share
Share Share  distributable fund  Translation Hedging options Special  Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
) %2
RE  RBEE  AREE  ESRE  ERRE  UAERE  BREEE  BARE 2R At
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BETT  BMTT  B¥Tn ATn BETr BETn BETn BT BT BETR
(note’) (note i)
(k) (i)
At 1 January 2015 R201551 817 82,500 20307 251,619 17,588 130,701 (816) 163,430 (97362)  17299% 2,297,963
Exchange differences aising flom translation Ef@:ﬁﬁﬁim&%%ﬁ - - - - (95675) - - - - (95675)
Other Comprehensive expense from share of FEEREAFEMAERL
Joint ventures - - - - (2570) - - - - (2,570)
Net adjustment on cash flow hedges GeHn R8EE - - - - - 632 - - - 632
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year  FRE2E (3t i - - - - (9829) 632 - - - (97613)
Proft forthe year ERET = = = - - - - - 269678 269678
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year ~ EMEMZTE (Xt LS - - - - (98245) 632 - - 269678 172,065
Lapse of share option BHRHSRAR ERERE - - - - - - (163430) - 163430 -
Cash diidends recognised as distbution (Vote 13) ~ BEAAEZBEMRE(Hi213) - - - = - - - - (13750 (123750)
Transfer to non-distibutable reserve fund & AT DR - - 3785 - - - - = (37856) =
Transfer to safety fund resenve #\Z2E0HE - = = 2760 = = = = (2760) =
At31 December 2015 H0155 12318 0500 0307 945 0 4% (84) - O3 1978 2346278
Exchange differences arising fiom translation BREmELHEL 28 - - - - (136212) - - - - (136212)
Other comprehensive expense fom share EitBeEAEE
ofjoint venures i - - - - (1920) - - - - (1,920)
Net adjustment on cash flow hedges bk ik = = = = = 184 = = = 184
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year  £MEM2E ()i = - - - (13813) 184 - - - (137949
Proft for the year FRgf - - - - - - - - 216,195 216,195
Total comprehensive (expense) income ERRE () hELeE
for the year = = = = (138,132) 184 = = 216,195 78,247
Cash diidends recognised as distibution (Vote 13) ~ BERAEZREMREH213) - - - - - - - - (85000 (82500)
Transfer to non-disirbutzble resenve fund BAMTHRE - - 43971 - - - - - (43971 -
Transfer from safety fund resenve EliR2E4REE - - - (591) - - - - 5921 -
Release upon deregistation of a subsiciary BHEHHNBARNELER = - - - 03 - - - ) -
At31 December 2016 Ra016E 125318 0N 0307 A6 W (105453) = - OI) 2094160 23402005
notes: Mt -
(i)  According to the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), wholly ()  RIEFREARLFBE([FEDBEBZER  EHREE

foreign-owned enterprises in the PRC are required to transfer at least 10% of their net
profits after taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to a non-
distributable reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before the distribution of a dividend
to equity owners. The non-distributable reserve fund can be used to offset the previous
years' losses, if any. The non-distributable reserve fund is non-distributable other than

upon liquidation.

(i)  The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value
of the share capital issued by the Company and the nominal value of the share capital

of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation in December 2001.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (E(ZE2016F12A31HIEFE)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Write-off of property, plant and equipment
Net loss from fair value changes on derivative
financial instruments
Gain from change in fair value of an investment
property
Interest income

Share of loss of joint ventures

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Decrease in inventories
Increase (decrease) in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables
Decrease in derivative financial instruments

Decrease in amounts due to related companies

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

FI}K\

TS
B AT
B

W R RRE I E
AR R

HEME  BERREEA
W - B R
FAESBMTAATESR

2 BB (a5
BENEATERBRS
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2016
HK$'000
TR

339,950

26,525
24,803
1,226
9,221

84

(18,633)
(2,112)
545

381,609
184,975
(29,939)
116,851
(106)
(1,191)

652,199
(105,597)

546,602

2015
HK$'000
TAT

355,944

28,222
17,984
420

670

(15,579)
2,415

390,076
133,869
145,009
68,950

(3,521)

(254)

734,129
(86,793)

647,336



INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Decrease in construction payables

Payment for prepaid lease payments

Other deposits paid

Loan to a joint venture

Government grants received for acquisition of
land use right

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Interest received

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of bank borrowings

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Settlement of derivative financial instruments
under hedge accounting

Bank borrowings raised

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR

REEY
BEVE BEEERE
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2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT

(302,505)  (311,847)
(203,391)  (195,465)
(34,145) (97,800)
- (77,438)

- (66,870)

- (4,263)

- 30,808

171 383
2,112 15,579

(537,758) (706,913)

(1,857,516)  (1,104,770)
(82,500) (123,750)
(68,452) (57,900)

(a16) (1,847)
1,990,327 1,028,467

(18,557)  (259,800)

(9,713) (319,377)

252,721 596,752
(14,917) (24,654)
228,091 252,721



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

mE R T

(BZE2016F12A31HILFE)

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate holding
company and immediate parent is Fortune Star Tradings Limited
(“Fortune Star"), a company which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Lee Wan Keung.
The address of the registered office of the Company is disclosed in
the section “Corporate Information” to the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB"), while
the consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK dollars”) as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure
Initiative for the first time in the current year. The amendments
to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity needs not provide a specific
disclosure required by an HKFRS if the information resulting from
that disclosure is not material, and give guidance on the bases
of aggregating and disaggregating information. However, the
amendments reiterate that an entity should consider providing
additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements in HKFRS is insufficient to enable users of financial
statements to understand the impact of particular transactions,
events and conditions on the entity's financial position and financial
performance.

In addition, the amendments clarify that an entity’s share of the
other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method should be presented
separately from those arising from the Group, and should be
separated into the share of items that, in accordance with other
HKFRSs: (i) will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
and (ii) will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met.

As regards the structure of the financial statements, the
amendments provide examples of systematic ordering or grouping
of the notes.

The Group has applied these amendments retrospectively. The
application of these amendments has not resulted in any impact on
the financial performance or financial position of the Group in these
consolidated financial statements.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EI{t THERAE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#(Z=20165F12A31HILFE)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Financial Instruments!

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’
Leases?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions!

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4

AT RESITEE MG HEER

((FEMBHEEER )

=3
(75 )/

CEM B RER 2 H T RSB EE

Insurance Contract!

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers!

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative*

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

for Unrealised Losses*

l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

«  all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are generally measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

« with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of such changes in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to
a financial liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as
fair value through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE R T

N

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (E(ZE2016F12A31HIEFE)

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

. in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

«  the new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently
available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types
of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for
hedge accounting. In addition, the retrospective quantitative
effectiveness test has been removed. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk management activities have
also been introduced.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 December 2016, the directors do not anticipate
that the application of HKFRS 9 in the future will have a material
impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

«  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
«  Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
«  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

«  Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

«  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods
or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to
deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have an impact on the amounts
reported as the timing of revenue recognition may be affected
and the amounts of revenue recognised are subject to variable
consideration constraints, and more disclosures relating to revenue
is required. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a
detailed review. In addition, the application of HKFRS 15 in the
future may result in more disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

2.

(BZE2016F12A31HILFE)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes leases and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by
lessees except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of cash flows,
under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing and financing/operating cash flows
respectively.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee.
The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in
classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if
they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and

continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately HK$5,004,000
as disclosed in note 33. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS
16, and hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the application
of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirements
may result changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure
as indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the directors
complete a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes. Specially, the amendments
require the following changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities to be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows;
(if) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries
or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange
rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017 with earlier application permitted. The
application of the amendments may result in additional disclosures
on the Group's financing activities, specifically reconciliation between
the opening and closing balances in the consolidated statement of
financial position for liabilities arising from financing activities will
be provided on application. The directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of these amendments will have a
material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

The directors anticipate that the application of other new and

revised standards will have no material impact on the results and
the financial position of the Group.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (E(ZE2016F12A31HIEFE)

3.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

During the year, the Group changed its accounting policy relating to
its investment property as follows. Prior to the change, the Group
used to measure its investment property using the cost model. The
management of the Group considers that measuring investment
property at fair value model provides more relevant information
about the Group's financial performance to the economic decision-
making needs of users as most of the companies engaged
businesses in properties investment in the PRC adopt the same
model in measuring the investment properties.

After due and careful consideration, the directors of the Company
considered that this change in accounting policy will have no
significant impact on how the Group's results and financial position
for the prior year would have been prepared or presented. As
a result, there is no restatements made by the directors on the
Group's results and financial position for the prior year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 or value in use in HKAS 36. In addition, for financial reporting
purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level T,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

«  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

«  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

«  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

4.
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(BZE2016F12A31HILFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

«  has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

«  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group's voting
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

«  the size of the Group'’s holding of voting rights relative to the
size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

«  potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or
other parties;

+  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

« any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholder's meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of
the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of the joint venture. When
the Group's share of losses of a joint venture exceeds the Group's
interest in that joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognizing its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint venture. An investment in
a joint venture is accounted for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes a joint venture. On acquisition
of the investment in a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

4.
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(BZE2016F12A31HILFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in a joint venture. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be a joint venture, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains an interest in the former joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with
HKAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of the joint
venture at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the joint venture is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that joint venture on the
same basis as would be required if that joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that
joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or
loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the joint
venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the joint venture that
are not related to the Group.

Interest in a joint operation

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement (i.e. joint operators) have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
joint arrangement.

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint operations,
the Group as a joint operator recognises in relation to its interest in

a joint operation:

«  its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;
«  its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;
« its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from

the joint operation;

«  its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the
joint operation; and

« its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses
relating to its interest in a joint operation in accordance with the
HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (E(ZE2016F12A31HIEFE)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed.

Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting
the above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production of goods or for administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Properties, plant and machinery in the course of construction for
production or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy. Such assets are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other
than construction in progress less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the

lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (E(ZE2016F12A31HIEFE)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring/and held
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion
to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes). Investment properties include land held for
undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group's property interests held under operating leases to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are classified and
accounted for as investment properties and are measured using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment properties are included in profit or loss
for the period in which they arise. Construction costs incurred
for investment properties under construction are capitalised as
part of the carrying amount of the investment properties under
construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in
which the property is derecognised.

73

Annual Report 2016 F 3R

RENF

RENMEDHEERDES R HESEK
BARREZYF(BRIFZSRGBIER
ME) - RENEBREFAIERRERK
Mgz ti  WRRFHAESKERE
B -

REMENHZRRAN(BREREMERES
SH)EE - MinHERE - REWER
HAFEENE - AREAREHENR
ARFENARBESHEAIEEROM
RAENMBESAFERRENE XK
RARFEERE;E - REVELFE
BEEPELNWEHIBL  STAEHE
o ERNEMERELMNBERAN - 1F
RERKEMENEREBEN BT
PN-ZN |

EREMRLEIOKAF ILER RIE

“ERZMELETESRREEM
B AR IETERZ AR B © RILHE
RMEREE 2EARERER(REE
PRSI R EZ A ERE(E 2 Z8at
BRI ERZ Y < Bt A Bk
A o



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (E(ZE2016F12A31HIEFE)

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Retirement benefit costs
Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) are

recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on settlement of the monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign
operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or
partial disposal of the Group's interests.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operation
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as a deduction from the carrying amount of
the relevant asset in the consolidated statement of financial position
and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interest
in a joint arrangements, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interest are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of investment properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within on business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve). Service and non-market base performance
conditions are not taken in account when estimating the fair value
at measurement date.

Instead, service and non-market base performance conditions are

taken in consideration to determine the number of share options
that are expected to ultimately vest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss ("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories:
loans and receivables and financial assets at FVTPL. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, loan to a joint venture, amount due
from a joint venture and bank balances and cash) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Financial assets at fair value through profit loss
Financial assets classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is

either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

+  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

«  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

« it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the credit period ranged 7 to 60 days and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all loans and receivables with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other

than those financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL, of which the
interest expense is included in net gains or losses.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liabilities are derivatives that are not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amounts
due to related companies and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately
unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which case the timing of the recognition in profit or
loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments for
cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedging relationship the Group documents
the relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged
item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group
documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in
offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments (Continued)
Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (hedging reserve) are reclassified to profit
or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss,
in the same line of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as the recognised hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the
hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in hedging reserve at that time remains in
equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

85

Annual Report 2016 F 3R

SWMIAEE)

TTEB T AREH (&)

EEMNAERIEREREE P 2ITE
TARFEES  HEREHOREMK
SRR Rt R IR EHER - HEX
BBy 2 BIBENR P8 AR ©

EREHIHEE R BEARERR - 2
RIERRN A 2R E R R RER T
(B c 2R EHR DO EEE
— BN S B M E 2 e R
RHVERIEE A ©

EAKEMRETEE  HHTACE
o B BRI TESRT BN E
GFDE - HIHSFHEAR R L - B
AR EM 2SN RFTREP R
ERRERRERERA - WEFRRR
FRENBREATER - MBI ZEH
THEET  NMERZ Rt BENRRME
TR o

AU TERE

MAEERRRESRNENENE E
o AIRRESER I EREREE

REIEERTHEER - ZBEENR
mEED W REEREARREMEE
Yas iR A s Rt 2 Rt s sl g
Bz aMERNERER -

AR AN B 2 BEERR - BUESER
B AEERRLERSHEE - BN
HERATRABE RIERED M REN
REZEZFX B NER -



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

4.

e R R M EE

(BZE2016F12A31HILFE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required to
make various estimates based on past experience and expectations
of the future and other information. The key sources of estimation
uncertainty that can significantly affect the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements
within the next financial year are disclosed below.

Estimate of fair value of an investment property

At the end of the reporting period, investment property is stated
at fair value based on the valuation performed by an independent
professional valuer. In determining the fair value, the valuer has
based on a method of valuation which involves certain estimates. In
relying on the valuation report, the management has exercised their
judgment and is satisfied that the assumptions used in valuation
have reflected the current market conditions. The carrying amount
of investment property at 31 December 2016 was HK$61,798,000
(2015: HK$46,901,000).

Estimate of the PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

The PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
600% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditures including sales charges,
borrowing costs and all property development expenditures.

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC. The
details of implementation have been announced by local tax
bureaux in certain major cities, however, the Group will not finalised
its LAT calculation and payments with local tax bureaux in those
cities in the PRC until the relevant properties are sold. Accordingly,
significant judgments are required in determining the amount of
land appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on management's best estimates according to the
understanding of the tax rules. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TS R ER MY EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

5.

(BZE2016F12A31HILFE)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Impairment loss on trade receivables

The assessment of the impairment loss on trade receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and
aging analysis of accounts and on management'’s judgment. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness of each customer. If the financial conditions
of the Group's customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances
may be required. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying value
of trade receivables (net of impairment loss) was approximately
HK$53,477,000 (2015: HK$45,543,000).

Write-down of inventories

Management reviews the inventories listing at the end of each
reporting period, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for use
in operation. Estimation of net realisable value are based on the
most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are made,
of the amount the inventories are expected to realise. Where the
net realisable value is less than the cost, a material write down may
arise. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of inventories
(net of allowances) was approximately HK$231,846,000 (2015:
HK$206,715,000).

Recognition of deferred tax

As at 31 December 2016, no deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised on the undistributed profits of the group companies in
the PRC as the Group plans to retain those profits in the respective
entities for their daily operations and future developments. In case
there is a change in such plan, additional tax liabilities will arise,
which will be recognised in the profit or loss for the period in which
the management intends to declare such profits in the foreseeable
future or the Group's future development plan is amended,
whichever is earlier. Details of the above unrecognised liabilities are
set out in note 10.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. The board of directors of the
Company determines the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. The directors work closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model and to understand the cause of
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are
not based on observable market data to estimate the fair value
of certain types of assets. Notes 18 and 41c provide detailed
information about the valuation techniques, inputs and key
assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of various
assets and liabilities.

REVENUE

All the Group's revenue for the year is derived from manufacture
and sales of chemical products.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(a) Operating segments

HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on
the basis of internal reports about components of the Group
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM"), being the Chairman of the Company, in
order to allocate resources to segments and to assess their
performance. The CODM reviews the Group’s profit as a
whole, which is generated solely from the manufacture and
sale of chemical products and determined in accordance with
the Group's accounting policies, for performance assessment.
Therefore no separate segment information is prepared by the
Group.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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A

B 5 ¥R R B R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (E(ZE2016F12A31HIEFE)

7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

(9]

(d)

Geographical information

All the Group's revenue from external customers is derived
from the PRC for both years.

Information about the Group's non-current assets is presented
based on the geographical location of the assets.

SEWRE(E)

(b) HEER

AEBEMEFERERBINEEP

ZWAREPE -

ERAKEFRBEENER - 2
RIBEENMIBUEZS o

Non-current assets

FRBEE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
The PRC other than Hong Kong R (FBRIN) 3,833,574 3,659,410
Hong Kong BB 7,098 -
3,840,672 3,659,410

Revenue from major products

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its
major products:

() FEERBA

AEENEEERRADTAT

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

Chloromethane products REkEtm 543,825 644,856
Caustic soda et 887,132 743,113
Hydrogen peroxide BElR 64,844 142,317
Fluorochemical products A IES 262,249 96,598
Others HA 55,801 78,995
1,813,851 1,705,879

Information about major customers

No customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group in both years.
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OTHER INCOME 8. HftlxA
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHIT
Bank interest income IRITFEMA 2,112 15,579
Government grants (note) BT RE (AT aE) 43,383 39,790
Scrap sales RE A 4,203 7,604
Others Hh 37,344 21,792
87,042 84,765
note: The Group recognises these grants as other income upon receipt. i - ARRERKEZ SRR T AN -
OTHER GAIN AND LOSSES 9. Rt REIR
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FiT
Gain from change in fair value of REVMERANTHEZS
an investment property ZWE 18,633 -
Net loss from changes in fair value of ITTESRMITARTEZS
derivative financial instruments ZEER (84) (670)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and BREME  BE
equipment RAEELR (1,.226) (420)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment Y - BB KRB (9,221) =
8,102 (1,090)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ERAR AT

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#EZE2016F12A31HIEFE)

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. R
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
The charge comprises: XHEE
Current tax: NEATIA
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") AR TS AR 95,834 62,034
Withholding tax on dividend income PR B ATEHH 13,123 24,550
Other jurisdiction Hith BhE M= 34 36
Under(over)provision in prior years: VAR EAETR -
EIT IR EFTISH 7,362 (878)
Deferred tax expenses: IRIERIA
Current year RE IR 7,402 524
123,755 86,266

The Group's major business is in the PRC. Under the Law of the
PRC on EIT and its Implementation Regulation, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016, Jiangsu L&M

was entitled to a reduced EIT rate of 15% as it has been qualified as
a High and New Technology Enterprise.

Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rate
prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made for both years since
there is no assessable profit for both years.
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The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:
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FARBARXEGAEREREMEEK

HRFFIGBE A FIREIRNT

2016
HK$'000
FET
Profit before tax FRA AT A 339,950
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% RAH P15 25002 18
(2015: 25%) (2015 : 25%) 84,988
LAT T HIR(E R 11,180
Tax effect of LAT THIRER 2 ISR (2,795)
Tax effect of share of loss of joint ventures JElEE R
MG E 136
Tax effect of expenses not deductible in EERERB NN H 2
determining taxable profit MG E 36,153
Tax effect of income not taxable in determining 78 & & SR H i F1|F BB 7B FE SR B U
taxable profit 2R (6,144)
Effect of concessionary rate granted to a PRC R EIMIE A RIEEBR R 2 22
subsidiary (36,172)
Effect of different tax rate of a subsidiary Ht ez R ER o8
operating in other jurisdiction 15,424
Under(over)provision in respect of prior year ~ MARIEE D (% )12 7,362
Utilisation of tax losses previously not 5 2 B A RER R TE 518
recognised -
Utilisation of other deductible temporary {8 2 AT HESR B EL At FT K40
difference previously recognised ThrlEER 500
Withholding tax on dividend income PR B ATALR FR1SX 13,123
Income tax expense for the year FAMEHZH 123,755

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$2,046,637,000 (2015:
HK$2,041,149,000) as the directors believe that the Company is
able to control the timing of the distribution by its subsidiaries.
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2015
HK$'000
TAT

355,944

88,986

604
25,504

(946)

(41,058)

9,740
(878)

(20,760)

524
24,550

86,266
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H2008F 1 A1BERIZBERHB AR Z
wm A M E IR A IR BB - FEARA TR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

10.

B HRRM

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(BZE2016F12A31HILFE)

The following are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities
recognised and movement thereon during the current and prior

10. FRfS#AZH (&)

UTREREEHR(BE)RERFA
Ko £ BRI S D -

reporting period:
Unrealised Deferred
profit in income in
respect respect of
of unsold subsidy
inventories received for
between  acquisition of
subsidiaries  prepaid lease
Revaluation  of the Group payments
of investment RS AR TALT
property  MIBARIME  FEUEUKER
REMHE RKEEFEZ ik Total
ZEf  RERNE BREW A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FHT FHT
At 1 January 2015 7201541818 - - (25,349) (25,349)
Charged to profit or loss FTAER - - 524 524
Exchange realignment M 5 R = - 1,045 1,045
At 31 December 2015 2015512 H31H - - (23,780) (23,780)
Charged (credited) to FTAER
profit or loss 8,385 (1,483) 500 7,402
Exchange realignment b 5 377) - 1,446 1,069
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12A31H 8,008 (1,483) (21,834) (15,309)
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Profit for the year has been arrived at after
charging:

Directors’ emoluments (note 14)
Other staff costs:
Salaries and other benefits
(excluding directors)
Retirement benefit schemes contributions
(excluding directors)

Total staff costs

Finance costs:
Interest on bank borrowings

Less: amounts capitalised to property, plant
and equipment (note)

Net adjustment on interest rate swaps
designated as cash flow hedges of
floating rate debt

Auditors’ remuneration
— Audit services
— Non-audit services
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Amortisation of intangible assets included in
cost of sales

Total depreciation and amortisation
Capitalised in inventories

note: Certain borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose from the general

FREFE R :

E=HM(MEET14)
HADH B AR -
He RHEAET]
(BEHIN)
RIRERIFH IR
(ZFEIN)

BB
MEXH —ARAFR
2EMEREZIRITER
o R -~ B KR
BEXfez e R(HZ)

B2 BAETRIR & e
ZHBI=MEL
Z AR

RGBS -

— At IR

— IR RS
ERAR/XHNFERA
M BB RREIINE
TAfE E IR
FEASEERAR

BB

FEREHART
BERtAFEZE8

borrowings and were calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 3.28% (2015:

2.75%) per annum to expenditures on qualifying assets.
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2016
HK$'000
Tz

11,261

150,084

10,642

171,987

68,452

(44,065)

24,387

416

24,803

1,456

175
1,155,893
221,086
2,668

1,156

224,910
(198,385)

26,525

2015
HK$'000
TAT

9,483

127,442

15,684

152,609

57,900

(41,763)

16,137

1,847

17,984

1,381

169
1,030,707
183,476
2,294

1,206

186,976
(158,754)

28,222

HiiF - AEEBHERNMEOEER AR —RERE
£ RARAENMEBGEHNEES RIREF
B R328%(2015%F : 2.75%):tE -



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

12.

13.

(BZE2016F12A31HILFE)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on the profit for the year of HK$216,195,000 (2015:
HK$269,678,000) and 825,000,000 (2015: 825,000,000) shares
in issue during the year.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for 2015 did not
assume the exercise of the Company's options because the exercise
price of those options was higher than the average market price for
shares in that year.

No diluted earnings per share for 2016 were presented as there
were no potential ordinary shares in issue for 2016.

12.

=RET

EREARBEBERNTIZE N & F
216,195,000 7T, (2015 : 269,678,000
7 7T ) & 825,000,000 % ( 2015 :
825,000,0000% ) {EZT& -

2015 GREE BN ET E I MREZRST
FARRMERE  EAEZSHENT
FEEREFROHMFEHEHE -

HR20168 8 B TBIEL @R - At
2016 F EH BT -

DIVIDENDS 13. &R
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Dividends recognised as distributions during ~ EREHERD K
the year: ZHRE
Final dividend of HK5 cents per share forthe — #EHZ2015F 128318 IEFEfE
year ended 31 December 2015 REARR B ARSI 41,250 =
Interim dividend of HK5 cents per share for the #Z2016% 12 A31 B IFEE
year ended 31 December 2016 h HARLB B ALSEIL 41,250 -
Final dividend of HK8 cents per share forthe — &(Z2014F12A31 8 I-FE
year ended 31 December 2014 REAR B A8 E L - 66,000
Interim dividend of HK7 cents per share for the #Z2015F 12 A31HILFE
year ended 31 December 2015 T RS B A7 - 57,750
82,500 123,750

A final dividend of HK4 cents (2015: HK5 cents) per share
amounting to HK$33,000,000 (2015: HK$41,250,000) in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2016 has been proposed by
the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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14. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
EMOLUMENTS

14. EEREERITEME

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 8 (2015: 7) BTk ES T80 (2015 : 7R EERE

directors and chief executive officer were as follows: FHRITEZMELT
Other emoluments
Httde
Contributions
Salaries  to retirement  Discretionary
and other benefit bonus
benefits schemes payments
Fees e EAREA Biftg Total
e H bR HELS ®EXH CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL FHx TEL TARL THEL
(note iii)
(Histiii)
Year ended 31.12.2016 BZ2016512A31HLERE
Executive directors HiTEE
Wai Siu Kee Bo% 960 1,200 - 2,000 4,160
Lee Man Yan X8 960 1,140 - - 2,100
Yang Zuo Ning BfEE - 825 - - 825
Chan Abert Sun Chi (note j) R (fri) - 3232 - - 3232
Wong Yuet Ming (note i) T R - 484 10 - 494
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTEE
Wan Chi Keung, Aaron JP pt 150 - - - 150
Wong Kai Tung, Tony FRE 150 - - - 150
Heng Victor Ja Wei Mz 150 - - - 150
2,370 6,881 10 2,000 11,261

97



LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EI{t THERAE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#(Z=20165F12A31HILFE)

14. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

14. EERERRITEMS (&)

Other emoluments
Eftie
Contributions
Salaries  toretirement  Discretionary
and other benefit bonus
benefits schemes payments
Fees Fek SRR EftFRA Total
ik EftEM TR ik CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT THT THT TAT
(note i)
(Wiiti)
Year ended 31.12.2015 BE2015512831 8L FE
Executive directors HITEE
Wai Siu Kee EoR 960 1,200 - 3,000 5,160
Lee Man Yan ZXB 960 1,19 - - 2,154
Yang Zuo Ning BIEE - 930 - - 930
Wong Yuet Ming TA#H - 804 18 - 822
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTEF
Wan Chi Keung, Aaron JP Ha 139 - - - 139
Wong Kai Tung, Tony TRE 139 - - - 139
Heng Victor Ja Wei iz 139 - - - 139
2,337 4128 18 3,000 9,483

The executive directors’ and non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the Group and for
their services as directors of the Company respectively.

notes:

(i)  Professor Chan Albert Sun Chi was appointed as executive director on 9 May
2016.

@iy Ms. Wong Yuet Ming resigned as executive director on 5 August 2016.
(i) Other performance related incentive payments were determined with regards

to individual performance. Neither the chief executive officer nor any of the
directors waived any emoluments in both years.
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15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year,
one became a director of the Company on 9 May 2016. The table
below includes his remuneration up to the date of his appointment
as a director and remuneration relating to the post-appointment

period as included in note 14 above.
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15. EAEREHFMZEA

REBRAFEERARe M2 EA
o —BR2016F5 A9 AR RE
Eo TR EEHEZEAES A
RETERB A EME14FTR ©

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FiET
Fees we 1,920 1,920
Salaries and other benefits e M EMEF] 10,994 5,439
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes R {RIRFIET 2k 18 18
Discretionary bonus payments MisRE X 2,000 3,000
14,932 10,377

Their remuneration fell within the following bands: HEBRIATEHE :
2016 2015
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AH
Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 B #EBHK$1,000,000 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 HK$1,000,001 % HK$1,500,000 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 HK$2,000,001 £ HK$2,500,000 1 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 HK$4,000,001 & HK$4,500,000 1 —
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 HK$5,000,001 £ HK$5,500,000 - 1
HK$6,500,001 and above HK$6,500,001 & A F 1 -
5 5
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mE SRR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(BZE2016F12A31HILFE)

16. 3% - BE Rk {E

Leasehold
land and
buildings
and
leasehold Furniture
improvements  fixtures and
HELHR  equipment Motor  Plantand Construction
BEMAN KA RE vehicles  machinery i progress Total
BEHRY K& RE BERESE EEIR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
cosT A
At 1 January 2015 #201561A1H 332,649 16,720 13877 2181508 1039005 3583759
Exchange realignment L (23,006) (780) (598) (94,201) (71161)  (189,746)
Additions AR 21217 1911 679 16,526 665,925 706,258
Disposals i3 - 3) (798) (959) = (1,760)
Transfer EE3 - 110 - 56976 (57,086) =
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12A31R 330,860 17,958 13160 2159850 1576683 4,098,511
Exchange realignment R (26,344) (1,487 (964)  (199,628) (43516)  (271939)
Additions AE 7,157 3275 3417 35614 419,409 468,872
Disposals i3 - (378) (965) (1,487) (647) (3477)
Written off Rz = - - (16,203) - (16,203)
Transfer a5 125,595 4,755 - 1506713 (1,637,063) -
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12A31R 437,268 24123 14648 3484859 314866 4275764
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2015 H201561A18 25,647 4,785 5711 618,071 - 654,214
Provided for the year TERE 14977 2,938 2,389 163,172 - 183,476
Exchange realignment 5 A% (1,548) (294) (299) (31,122) - (33,263)
Elimination on disposal LR - (1) (584) (372) = (957)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12A31R 39,076 7,428 7217 749,749 - 803,470
Provided for the year RERE 17013 3,604 2,403 198,066 - 221,086
Exchange realignment L (3,206) (610) (545) (55,037) - (59,398)
Elimination on disposal LR - (329) (453) (1,298) = (2,080)
Written off Bz = - - (6982) - (6982)
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12A31A 52,883 10,093 8,622 884,498 - 956,096
CARRYING VALUE RAE
At 31 December 2016 201651274318 384,385 14,030 6026 2,600,361 314866 3,319,668
At 31 December 2015 R2015F 124318 291,784 10,530 5943 1410101 1576683 3295041
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16.

17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings and leasehold 5% — 7.5%
improvements

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%

Motor vehicles 25%

Plant and machinery 5% — 20%

The carrying values of the Group's leasehold land and buildings
represent buildings on land under medium-term land use rights in
the PRC and leasehold land and building located in Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of buildings includes
an amount of HK$17,164,000 (2015: HK$19,311,000) shared
from a joint operation as set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land in the
PRC under medium-term lease.

16.

17.
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W% BERBEE)

HitE - BER&EEE HAERR
BT ERITE -

EFLXEENRR 5% — 7.5%
R~ B KR 20%
RE 25%
BB M Akes 5% — 20%

AEBYEESNEAEREETEER
FETHIME AL EREREEY)

HZEZ2016F12A31H81E  EF2
FEHSHEPERETAEEBYRMEL
17,164,0007% 7t (2015 : 19,311,000
T0) ¢ FHIBEHRN R A SRR MIEEST ©

AHAREA

AEBZENHERAREFEREALZ
REEE i o

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHTT

Analysed for reporting purposes as: AIT2IMAT -
Non-current asset EMBNEE 112,496 122,609
Current asset MENEE 3,022 3,222
115,518 125,831

Note: As at 31 December 2016, government grants in respect of acquisition of
prepaid lease payments with an aggregate amount of HK$118,065,000 (2015:
HK$128,560,000) was deducted from the carrying amount of prepaid lease
payments.

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of prepaid

lease payments includes an amount of HK$2,390,000 (2015:
HK$2,604,000) shared from a joint operation.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TS R ER MY EE

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (E(ZE2016F12A31HIEFE)

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 18. W ME
Investment
property
REMHE
HK$'000
THTT
FAIR VALUE R
At 1 January 2015 7201551 H18 48,953
Exchange realignment I 5, 2 (2,052)
At 31 December 2015 2015512 H31H 46,901
Gain on fair value change recognised in profit or loss ~ AFEZE ISt ABE 18,633
Exchange realignment HE 5, 2 (3,736)
At 31 December 2016 R2016512A31H 61,798

The Group's property interest held under operating lease for capital
appreciation purpose is measured using the fair value model and
are classified and accounted for as an investment property.

The fair values of the Group's investment property as at 31
December 2016 and 2015 have been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out on the respective dates by Asset Appraisal
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer not connected
to the Group. Asset Appraisal Limited is a member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors. The valuation was determined by
adopting market approach, which uses prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions involving comparable
properties. In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest
and best use of the property is its current use.

The investment property is a piece of land of undetermined use in
the PRC categorised into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy in both
years. One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment property
was the sales prices of the properties nearby the Group's investment
property which ranged from RMB983/M2 to RMB1,284/M2. The
estimated price of the Group’s investment property is taken as
RMB1,074/M2. An increase in the sales prices would result in an
increase in fair value measurement of the investment property and
vice versa.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. EEEE
Technical
knowhow
1407 E A
HK$'000
T
COST 2%
At 1 January 2015 201551 H1H 12,188
Currency realignment b AR (511)
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12H31H 11,677
Currency realignment HE 5, 2 (722)
At 31 December 2016 M2016F12H31H 10,955
AMORTISATION #H
At 1 January 2015 MR2015F1A1H 7,243
Provided for the year TN S 1,206
Currency realignment M 5, B (342)
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12H31H 8,107
Provided for the year TN S 1,156
Currency realignment Rk (562)
At 31 December 2016 MR2016F12H31H 8,701
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 31 December 2016 R20165F12H31H 2,254
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12H31H 3,570

The technical knowhow was acquired from third parties. It is
amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of ten

years.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20.

mE R T

R
(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

(BZE2016F12A31HILFE)

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. AERERZHES
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Cost of unlisted investments in joint ventures ~ FE ETA S 2 IRWER K 24,177 24,177
Exchange realignment B 5, B (1,916) 4
Share of loss and other comprehensive FEEREREM RS H
expense (5,568) (5,023)
16,693 19,158

Details of each of the Group's joint ventures at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

BEREHR  ~KEREHAELE
RIFHIEEZIIT

Proportion of issued

Place of Class of and fully paid up

Form of establishment/ shares capital indirectly  Principal

Name of entity entity ventures incorporation  held held by the Group  activity
r&E

BELHE FriERE EESENERTR

BEREW Rz FRAL 3 B kRid) BREALH FTEXH
2016 2015

FARBEEARBAR  Limited incorporated  PRC Registered 40% 40%  Provision of port

BRARKL H capital facilities

AMER RAUE ORI

Southern Hill Company  Limited incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50% Investment holding
Limited BRARIKL BB L REER

HEFRAT

Wholly owned subsidiary of
Southern Hill Company Limited:

HE BN &L A]

Ruichang Lee & Man Limited incorporated ~ PRC Registered 50% 50%  Provision of port
Logistics Company ~ BRAFIKL i Capital facilities
Limited (“Ruichang &R RS AR
L&M")

I BER N
BRARA
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 20.
Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's BRAEESEERNEAECEZY
material joint ventures is set out below. The summarised financial HER BT - UTHEERRE
information below represents amounts shown in the joint venture's AETEVBRERSHERIEBBIE
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. ZRRR -
The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in EECENZERERERZERE
these consolidated financial statements. BB TERFRE o
BERRBEXERLA BERRBEERRAA
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Current assets mENEE 3,703 6,120
Non-current assets FEMENEE 71,886 79,841
Current liabilities ENAE (33,856) (38,066)
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: N HFEERBESEBIENT ¢
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THETT
Cash and cash equivalents RekERREIER 3,299 5,552
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and BB KA B (T REERNE S X
other payables and provisions) Hfth 5RI8 R ) (28,090) (29,940)
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Revenue WA 8,032 2,269
Loss and total comprehensive expense FABEBREEZ LT
for the year (1,361) (5,811)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS ER AR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#(Z=20165F12A31HILFE)

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 20. SELEZER(Z)
ERRBEEFR AR (Continued) ERRABBEERAT(E)
The above loss for the year includes the following: FRERNEBEEBEAT
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Depreciation e (4,260) (4/429)
Interest income FEUWA 190 81
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to NEFEHEARBEEBRAA 2 ER
the carrying amount of the interest in EAREEX AR A7 FRE S BN BER NGRS M BmEK
recognised in the consolidated financial statements: ZHIER
2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
Net assets of HHRABE X AR AR FARBEXRBRARIFEE 41,733 47,895
Proportion of the Group's ownership interestin  ZN&EE A EA BB L
EARBEXERAR] BRATEREZ D 40% 40%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in AEERENERRBEE
BARBEXRARAA BRARZEEEER 16,693 19,158
Southern Hill Company Limited MIEERAAE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current assets mEEE 1,810 4118
Non-current assets ERBEE 174,465 187,555
Current liabilities mENRE (190,346) (197,441)
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 20. SELEZEE(Z)
Southern Hill Company Limited (Continued) BEEERAT(E)
The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the following: NEEERBESBERENUT
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Cash and cash equivalents BehERIREEEB 1,810 4,115

Current financial liabilities (excluding trade NN EEETREENES R

and other payables and provisions) HoAth FRI8 R A ) (186,587) (191,880)
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Revenue WA - =
Loss and total comprehensive expense FABBEREE
for the year X (1 (4,680)
The above loss for the year include the following: FRERNEBEBEBEAT
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Depreciation and amortisation PrEe K iH (34) (36)
Interest income MBWA 2 1
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e RS ER AR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#(Z=20165F12A31HILFE)

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 20. SELEZER(Z)
Southern Hill Company Limited (Continued) FIEFRDE (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the W EEENBMEERS AREEBERA
carrying amount of the interest in Southern Hill Company Limited R REFRMSAERNGATBRE
recognised in the consolidated financial statements: Z A
2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000
THERT FHETT
Net liabilities of Southern Hill Company Limited FIEBR AT 2 F(BE)EE (14,071) G.771)
Proportion of the Group's ownership interest in - A& E 5B & GR A R #
Southern Hill Company Limited 2 #B15 50% 50%
(7,036) (2,886)
Unrecognised share of loss for the year RIERFNEILER 7,036 2,886
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in REBRENFEEFRATZ
Southern Hill Company Limited FRE®® - =
2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
The unrecognised share of loss of RERFARMLEAEEEER
a joint venture for the year 7,036 2,886
Cumulative share of loss of a joint venture REtEGEEREEE 9,922 2,886
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OTHER DEPOSIT 21. RfET&
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Deposit paid for acquisition of BERVEEZCNGI®(E7)
an intangible asset (Note) 93,245 99,387

Note: It represents the deposit paid by the Group for technical knowhow for the rights
to erect and operate a manufacturing plant for the production of a new chemical
product and the rights to distribute such product. As at 31 December 2016, the
balance amounted to approximately HK$93,245,000 (2015: HK$99,387,000).
During the year, the Group is in the process of constructing such new plant,
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$102,765,000, as included in
construction in progress balance in Note 16. According to the operation plan
approved by management, the construction is scheduled to complete in 2017.

To identify if there is any indication that such deposit paid and
construction in progress may be impaired, management (i) regularly
assesses whether evidence is available of any discrepancy in
construction progress against construction plan; (i) regularly reviews
the capital expenditure against their budgeted plan to identify any
deviation; and (iii) identifies if there are any significant changes
with an impact on the Group that have taken place during the year
or will take place in the near future, by researching for comparable
market trends of market price of the new chemical product and raw
material cost of producing it. No indication of impairment of the
Project has been identified by the management.

#it: WHASERFCIEREERENEE
K4S RN X R Y 4 SH 4 T S A o 0l
BT € - M2016F12A318 » #2%EL
93,245,000 7T (20154 : 99,387,000
TL) o ER - ALBEFEERZFEE I
ME{E{E%)102,765,000/8 7T ' B BEENFE
16ERIIRANA « RBE R BPIRER IR
ERER » ZITIRTEETR201 76K T -

HEMTeRERIEBERSESARME
g BEE()THHERESARIER
Rt T#EE RS T8 EEMER : (i)
RIBEBEEHEEMEEEARL - A
HEEASEMRE ¢ (i) RBHAEFET
B B8 N R R R E R AR F] L T 5
B HEEAFEHATARKELE
EHAEEEBZENEAE L - B
EREEZRBLERETR -

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 22. fTHEEMTA
Current Non-current
B FERE
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHTT FBx FHEIT
Derivative financial liabilities PTESREE
— net settlement —FERE
Derivative under hedge REHETHEARZ
accounting $TET A
Interest rate swap (Note i) F S A= EA (K 22ii) - = - (184)
Derivative not under hedge I IFIRE AR
accounting ZUTETHR
Interest rate swap (Note i) HNERERE K (7 5Ei) (20) (42) - -
(20) (42) - (184)
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 22. THEEMT A/
The fair values of the derivative financial instruments are calculated PTESBMTAEZ AFENRIEIIRE
using discounted cash flow analysis based on the applicable yield mEON - LUEB MR FhiAE R HiE
curves of interest rates and forward rates. REEMMAAE -
The derivative financial instrument is denominated in HK dollars MEeRTARUNEHERER 2 IFY
which is not the functional currency of the relevant group entity. REEMETNETTAE ©
Notes: Mt -
(i) Interest rate swap - (not) under hedging accounting () RREH-GREREHET
The Group uses interest rate swap to minimise its exposure to cash flow interest AEBFBFERBEH TR - HREZHFIE
rate risk of certain of its variable-rate US dollars and HK dollars bank borrowings ELMBITRITER (R E29) R SR
(see note 29) by swapping a proportion of the variable-rate bank borrowings SMXRRKBKOR/IME - H— B ZE)
from variable interest rates to fixed interest rates. The interest rate swap and MERITERBZBFEREREEFE - 7
the corresponding bank borrowings have substantially the same terms and the Ry HARNAE FE B0 SR 1T 8 A B AR AV 16
directors of the Company consider that the interest rate swap is a highly effective B ARAEERRFEEHZT —ESHN
hedging instrument. Major terms of the interest rate swap outstanding at 31 EHTA - 12016512331 H KR EERF
December 2016 are set out below: TS EAE BERAT ¢
Notional amount Interest rate swap
AHLH FEE#
1 contract with HK$300,000,000 From HIBOR + 2.7% to fixed rate of 3.4%
134 #978%300,000,0007C HEHIBOR + 2.7%7% [E & H%3.4%
The bank borrowing related to the contract with HK$300,000,000 was early A 4978 B SR 1T 18 3B B 300,000,000
repaid during the year ended 31 December 2016 and the interest rate swap JT o BUR20166F 12 A31 B ILFEREEE -
was not considered a hedging instrument. MEEHI MERBEHTH -
(i) Interest rate swap — under hedging accounting (i) RITEH-HHETET
Major terms of the interest rate swaps outstanding at 31 December 2015 were as HZE2015F 128318 - REEMNRI2HE R
below: T
Notional amount Interest rate swap
EAHReHE FEEH
1 contract with HK$300,000,000 From HIBOR + 2.7% to fixed rate of 3.4%
134 #78%300,000,0007T HEHIBOR + 2.7%% [E 7 ) %3.4%
The above contract will mature within one (2015: one to two) years from the FREREHRERRE—FR(2015F : —=
end of the reporting period. i E
During the year ended 31 December 2016, net adjustment of HK$184,000 REZE2016F12A31 ALLFE - FHEEE
(2015: HK$632,000) was credited in other comprehensive income and 184,0007t (20154 : 632,000 7T) 5t A K
accumulated in equity. A loss from fair value changes of HK$414,000 (2015: ARG et Rk Ret it - MBELNOMNERH
HK$1,847,000) relating to interest incurred was recognised in profit or loss (note A TFEEZEEKR414,0008 T (20155 -
). 1,847,000/ 7T) 5t ABaR (HIEE11) ©
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INVENTORIES 23. &8

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHBT
Raw materials and consumables RMEH R FEF @ 152,680 123,889
Work in progress T il 18,271 12,044
Finished goods 15K 5a 60,895 70,782
231,846 206,715

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. BWR SR AMKIER
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHBT
Trade receivables FEIE SR 53,477 45,543
Bills receivables il E e 166,245 86,779
219,722 132,322
Prepayments TR 40,074 41,887
Deposits to suppliers N EET © 40,745 6412
Value-added tax receivables FEWBEERIE 119,654 193,779
Other receivables H b ek 5,685 4,806
Total trade and other receivables W E 5 R EMFIBEART 425,880 379,206
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#EZE2016F12A31HIEFE)

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 24. BB REMBKIAE)
The aged analysis of trade and bills receivables based on the invoice BWEZERREBERREARRER
date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BZBRESITT :

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Not exceeding 30 days THBIEIOKR 153,699 102,176
31-60 days 31ZE60K 40,593 17,469
61-90 days 61E90K 15,858 5219
91-120 days 91 120K 5,102 3,292
Over 120 days Hid 120K 4,470 4,166
219,722 132,322
Prepayments TaftR 40,074 41,887
Deposits to suppliers RHtERET & 40,745 6,412
Value-added tax receivables FEWIB(ETIIE 119,654 193,779
Other receivables H b 3R 5,685 4,806
Total trade and other receivables JEWE 5 K B A RIB A 425,880 379,206
Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the REMERFZSA - AEBFEBRAS
potential customer's credit quality by investigating its historical ERPZzBATEERBRIHEEEEEE
credit record and then defines its credit limit. Trade receivables that BUVHEATEEERE - RBAK
are neither past due nor impaired are considered to be recovered B REBHTERE L EKE SHERN

based on historical experience. EHARERT K o
The Group generally allows its trade customers a credit period REBRTEGEPZEEHR R
ranged from 7 to 60 days. During the years ended 31 December NF7Z260RH - K2016F12A31H K&
2016 and 31 December 2015, no allowance for doubtful debts 2015512 AZ1 B EA - WEEH
was provided. The Group generally makes provision against debts REEEE - AEE—REB/TEKD

which are considered as not recoverable. 2 BIREHRE -
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25.

26.

LOAN TO A JOINT VENTURE/AMOUNT DUE FROM A
JOINT VENTURE

The loan to a joint venture represented shareholder's loan to
Southern Hill Company Limited. As at 31 December 2015, the
amount was unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one year
after the reporting period. As at 31 December 2016, the amount
was unsecured and interest-free, and the loan would form part of
the consideration for acquisition of certain piers held by Ruichong
L&M, a wholly owned subsidiary of Southern Hill Company Limited,
within one year after the reporting period. The loan is denominated
in US dollars which is a currency other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entity.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the amount due from a
joint venture represented the loan to EHARBEHEHBRR A A for
construction of a pier. As at 31 December 2015, the amount was
unsecured, interest-bearing and repayable in October 2016. The
loan agreement was renewed in 2016 and as at 31 December
2016 the loan is unsecured, interest-bearing and repayable in
October 2017.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short
term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
The deposits carry prevailing market interest rates which range from
0.3% to 5.15% (2015: 0.3% to 5.15%) per annum.

The following amounts of bank and cash are denominated in the
foreign currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities.

25.

26.
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SELRRER HMESELREN

ZAEELEBERERRABERR AR
HE - B2015F 128318 © Z& 5
AEEA . ES AEREHE—FAE
B o 2016F 128318 a8 AE
TR EESFE - MEFBERIREE—
FAEANERERSRAR AN B
REImEYRTEEE THENIH R
B - EXUETLIE  EHBEEEER
TEE BB AN EE ©

MR2016F K2015F 12 A31H « ERAE
EREFBRTARBELERAAMN
B3 - M2015F 128318 » 2485
I B RN2016F10AEE - &
RIBHER2016FEH - HZE2016F 12
A318  ZExEER - e kL2017
FI0AEE -

BITHBRAS

RITEB LA SBEAERRFZES
MEARAIMEA S DRIE AR 2 G5
RITFR - ZEFHILETHFEE0.3%
Z5.15%(2015 : 0.3%%5.15%):HE. °

ATRITRE BRI UEREBER
ZBE BB SN B R

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

HK dollars BT 19,663 4,133
US dollars E7T 2,667 7,182
22,330 11,315
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (E(ZE2016F12A31HIEFE)

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 27.

Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding
for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The credit period obtained
for trade purchases is 7 to 45 days.

Included in trade and other payables is trade payable of
HK$95,530,000 (2015: HK$80,707,000). The aged analysis of
trade payables based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

FEM RS RAEMRIEA

ENESREMFRBEIERRESEE
DEFEBRSKAZANRIE - EFEE
ZHREREI AT E45K o

ERESREMBIEREEMNE SRR
#$95,530,000% 7T (2015 : 80,707,000
BT BNESERFNSREERIZER
HZBREDITIAT ¢

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

Not exceeding 30 days TiEE30KR 63,217 56,757
31-60 days 31E260K 9,662 9,016
61-90 days 61290k 7,774 3,188
Over 90 days 90RIA = 14,877 11,746
95,530 80,707

Receipt in advance L 47,800 41,122
Construction costs payable and accruals Bt TRERKTERE R 118,990 153,135
Value-added tax accruals FERT BRI TR 7,271 17,126
Other payables H A FEAT R 93,536 57,960
Other accruals HEMERER 18,572 17,342
Total trade and other payables e E 5 R EAMFRIAEET 381,699 367,392

The balance of construction costs payable and accruals comprises
non-current construction costs payables of HK$26,299,000 (2015:
HK$65,506,000). Other accruals are classified as current liabilities.

The following amounts of trade and other payables are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities.

ENIEFEBRERABEIEREE
~ I 2 3 526,299,000 7T (2015 :
65,506,000 7T) « HTEIRE AW HE
BREAE -

AT A8 B8R R B 3R AR
SEERNINGEEBAIMEERLR -

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FETT

HK dollars BT 190 174
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28. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES
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28. FEMRELTREK

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Lee & Man Paper Manufacturing Limited BGER AR AR

(“Lee & Man Paper") ([EE D 2,602 3,771

Hong Kong Baptist University Investment BEEREGREREBTRAA
Limited (“HKBUI") ([BEEFKREE]D - 22
2,602 3,793

Lee & Man Paper is beneficially owned and controlled by Mr. Lee
Wan Keung, the controlling shareholder of the Company’s ultimate
holding company, Fortune Star. The amount represents a trade
balance which is unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable on
demand and aged within 90 days.

A subsidiary of the Group is a joint operator of HKBUI which
constitutes a joint operation of a research center located in
Changshu, the PRC. As at 31 December 2015, the amount was
unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable on demand and aged
within 60 days.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

(BZE2016F12A31HILFE)

29. BANK BORROWINGS 29. S|ITHER
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET

Unsecured bank loans ERIRI TR 1,969,030 1,861,834
Carrying amount of bank loans based on RIERHEAFEHERB R

scheduled repayment dates set out in the RITERAEREE :

loan agreements:

Within one year —FRX 220,040 611,444

More than one year, but not exceeding two B —FETBEmE

years 561,479 635,345
More than two years but not more than five BHMFETELE AT
years 962,792 615,045
1,744,311 1,861,834

Carrying amount of bank loans that are RIEBRERE—FAEER

repayable within one year from the end BB AR 2REEK 2

of the reporting period and contain a RITIEREREE

repayment on demand clause 224,719 -

1,969,030 1,861,834
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B —FRIENSERREBAE
under current liabilities TFIR (444,759) (611,444)

Amounts shown under non-current liabilities PRIEREBE TR 1,524,271 1,250,390

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had available banking facilities
of approximately HK$3,632,983,000 (2015: HK$3,630,955,000) of
which HK$1,969,030,000 (2015: HK$2,740,368,000) was utilised.
Unutilised banking facilities approximated HK$1,663,953,000

(2015: HK$890,587,000).

The exposure of the Group's fixed-rate borrowings and the

R2016F 128318 AEB 205
F IR 17 R & 38 4 3,632,983,000 /8 T
(2015 % : 3,630,955,000 #& jT ) °
H R 1,969,030,000 & 7T (2015 F :

2,740,368,0007 7t ) REBHBITRE
%) /& 1,663,953,000 /8 7T (2015 £
890,587,000/ 7T) °

AEEZBEEMNRERRAQBHE W

contractual maturity dates are as follows: T
2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000
THET THETT
Fixed-rate borrowings & 7E F =G5 110,307 56,048
Variable-rate borrowings EENFEE R 1,858,723 1,805,786
1,969,030 1,861,834
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29. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

At the end of the reporting period, all of the Group’s remaining
borrowings carried interest at variable rates.

The ranges of effective interest rates per annum on the Group's
borrowings are as follows:

Annual Report 2016 F 3R

29. SRITHER(E)

RBEHR - REB AR TRITHER

BEZR -

REBERERFNRGEEMT

2016 2015
Effective interest rate: BERFE
Fixed-rate borrowings RS =y 4.46% 3.68%
Variable-rate borrowings FENNEAE K PBCR* or 1% 1.66% to
to 2.7% 2.88% over
over HIBOR HIBOR or
BRRIT LIBOR
REFELZ BEAMBH
RITAIR
HELF
& The rate represents the benchmark lending rate offered by the People’s Bank of & IR ER TP EARRITIREOEESGKF
China. & o

The following amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group
entities.

AEE ZRITIEFIG AR ERES
EUIMNERTREINAT

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T

US dollars ETT - 171,871
HK dollars BT 1,048,118 1,633,915
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR MR

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#(Z=20165F12A31HILFE)

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. &%
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
EERGEE £8
HK$'000
FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each: SREMBECIAT L ERK -
Authorised: S
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and R2015%1 418 ~ 2015F12A318 &
31 December 2016 2016F12A31H 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BIRBR
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and R2015€1A18 2015812318 K&
31 December 2016 2016%F12A31H 825,000,000 82,500
There was no movement in the Company's share capital for both ART) 2 AR %M EFE T E) o
years.
31. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT OPERATION 31. SEXBKRSE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group acquired
500% shareholding of HKBUI which constitutes a joint operation of a
research center located in Changshu, the PRC.

At 31 December 2016, the aggregate amounts of assets and
expenses recognised in the consolidated financial statements

REZE2015F12A31HIEFE © A&
BIURE T B8R RIRES00MHE - FA
B AAEK —EfF TR O A S ER -

R2016F12A31H » KEERBEBES
BEBZESESREVERERERNE

relating to the Group's interests in this joint operation are as follows: ERERASTENT :
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Property L7ES 17,164 19,311
Prepaid lease payment TENHEERIE 2,390 2,604
19,554 21,915
Expenses ZH 1,437 1,512
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The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a resolution passed on 14 December 2001 for the
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible persons.
The Scheme had a term of 10 years from its adoption and therefore
it expired on 13 December 2010. On 23 April 2010, share options
with a market value of HK$163,430,000 were granted and the
provision of the Scheme shall remain in full force and the holder
of all options granted under the Scheme prior to such termination
shall be entitled to exercise the outstanding options pursuant to the
terms of the Scheme until expiry of the said options.

Under the Scheme, the Company's board of directors could at their
discretion grant options to (i) any director, employee or consultant
of the Company or a company in which the Company holds an
equity interest or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); or (ii)
any discretionary trust whose discretionary objects include any
director, employee or consultant of the Company or an Affiliate;
or (i) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee
or consultant of the Company or an Affiliate; or (iv) any customer,
supplier or adviser as may be determined by the directors of the
Company from time to time to subscribe for the shares of the
Company.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options might be granted under the Scheme was not
to exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company any
point in time. The maximum number of shares of the Company in
respect of which options might be granted to any individual in any
12-month period was not to exceed 1% of shares of the Company
in issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless approval
of the shareholders of the Company was obtained in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

Options could be exercised during such period (including the
minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held before it
could be exercised) as determined by the directors of the Company
(which shall be less than ten years from the date of issue of the
relevant option). Options could be granted without initial payment.
The exercise price was equal to the highest of (i) nominal value of
the shares of the Company; (ii) the closing price per share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of the
grant of the options; and (iii) the average closing price per share as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant of the
options.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M R

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#EZE2016F12A31HIEFE)

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 32. MERRIEEI(Z)

No options were granted or exercised under the scheme during
both years and all options lapsed on 22 April 2015.

The following table discloses movements of the Company's share
options during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015:

MEFERSEBREETE THEDR
AT - FTAEREN 201554 H22H
e

HZE2016F K2015F12A31BIEFE
A AARIEREEEZSI0T ¢

Number of share options

BRERE
Outstanding
at
Outstanding Lapsed 1.1.2015
Exercise at during and
Director Date of grant price Exercisable period 1.1.2015 theyear 31.12.2016
R20155F
1A1H
R2015F FA K2016%F
1818 BE 76/ 12A31H
= R BH TEE 1T ERITE KB EUH o RATE
HK$
BT
Lee Man Yan 23.42010 6.69 23.4.2011-22.4.2015 27,500,000  (27,500,000) =
FXE 23.42010 6.69  23.42012-22.42015 27,500,000  (27,500,000) =
23.42010 6.69 23.4.2013-22.4.2015 27,500,000  (27,500,000) =
Total
At 82,500,000  (82,500,000) =

Exercisable at the end
of the year
REEEAITTE
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The options granted on 23 April 2010 may be exercised in
accordance with the following terms:

®

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

up to one-third of the options (i.e. options for an aggregate of
27,500,000 shares) will be exercisable from 23 April 2011 to
22 April 2015 (both dates inclusive) if the consolidated net
profit after taxation of the Group (“Net Profit") for the financial
year ended 31 December 2010 equals or exceeds 115% of
the Net Profit for the financial year ended 31 December 2009;

up to two-thirds of the options (i.e. options for an aggregate
of 55,000,000 shares) will be exercisable from 23 April 2012
to 22 April 2015 (both dates inclusive) if the Net Profit for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011 equals or exceeds
130% of the Net Profit for the financial year ended 31
December 2009;

all of the options (i.e. options for an aggregate of 82,500,000
shares) will be exercisable from 23 April 2013 to 22 April
2015 (both dates inclusive) if the Net Profit for the financial
year ended 31 December 2012 equals or exceeds 145% of
the Net Profit for the financial year ended 31 December 2009;

to the extent any options have not become exercisable by
23 April 2014 (i.e. options for an aggregate of 82,500,000
shares), they will be exercisable from 23 April 2014 to 22 April
2015 (both dates inclusive) if the Net Profit for the financial
year ended 31 December 2013 equals or exceeds 160% of
the Net Profit for the financial year ended 31 December 20009.

The option shall lapse if the options holder by reason of voluntary
resignation or by termination of his employment in accordance with
the termination provisions of his contract of employment.

At 31 December 2016, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
Scheme represented 10% (2015: 10%) of the issued share capital
at that date.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

32.

e R R M EE

(BZE2016F12A31HILFE)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The total fair value of the share options granted under the Scheme
on 23 April 2010 is approximately HK$163,430,000, calculated
using the Binomial Model (the “Model"). The inputs into the Model
and the estimated fair value of the share options are as follows:

32.

Share options  Share options

AR fEstEI(2)

R2010F4 A23B AR R ERE 2 A F
E{E %) 5163,430,000/8 7T » JhEH =
HABR ([RE ) ET - HAREHAK
BRBRE G ATFEER2YIT ¢

Share options

with an with an with an

exercisable exercisable exercisable

period from  period from  period from

BRE BRE BREZ

THEHR TR TR

23.4.2011 23.4.2012 23.4.2013

to £ to £ to £

22.4.2015 22.4.2015 22.4.2015

Share price at date of grant REL BEIRE HK$6.69 HK$6.69 HK$6.69
6.6975 7T 6.6978 7T 6.69/ 7T

Exercise price 111E(E HK$6.69 HK$6.69 HK$6.69
6.6975 7T 6.69787T 6.69787T

Expected volatility FEER IR 53.62% 53.62% 53.62%
per annum per annum per annum

B53.6200  BE5362%  BF53.62%

Expected life of share options FERETREF 5 years 5 years 5 years
5% 54 5%

Expected dividend yield RS X 4.75% 4.75% 4.75%
Risk-free rate R R 2.03% 2.03% 2.03%
Fair value of share option -1 AN HK$1.78 HK$2.02 HK$2.15
1.78/87T 20277 2.15% 7T

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of share price over the previous five years. The expected life used
in the Model has been adjusted, based on management's best
estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.

The risk free interest rate was estimated based on the yield of the
5-year exchange fund note issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority as of the grant date.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The
value of an option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.
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33. OPERATING LEASES 33. #EHEN
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHET
Minimum lease payments paid under FABANAEYELETELY
operating leases in respect of office ZEERERK
premises during the year 2,009 2,370
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for REE R - NEBAGE T AT REER R
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating REEEEER RN T -
leases which fall due as follows:
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
T T
Within one year —FR 3,102 902
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_ZERF 1,902 100
5,004 1,002
Included in the commitments above, HK$94,000 (2015: F LA - EIBESOEARPTE] N R A]
HK$200,000) is related to commitment for future minimum lease BEEEHO 2 ARZERENTKE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases with Lee & Man 94,0007t (2015%F : 200,000/ 7) (Ff
Paper (note 37). FE37) o
The commitments for operating lease payments represent rentals REMHENFERERBASBREANAE
payable by the Group for office properties. Leases are negotiated for MEEN S  FHEZFHHEAE—
an average term of one year (2015: one year). Rentals are based F(2015F : —F) - L BEHER
on the terms specified in the lease agreements. HANZIETEREE -
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (E(ZE2016F12A31HIEFE)

34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34. BXEIE
2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not ERTKBERNERE MR T
provided in the consolidated financial B AR
statements in respect of the acquisition of REBE
— property, plant and equipment —WE - BERR& 278,093 189,935
— intangible asset —BIVEE 8,422 8,976
286,515 198911
35. OTHER COMMITMENT 35. Rftiakif

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contractual
commitments for acquisition of land use rights of HK$2,247,000
(2015: HK$2,395,000). It also had commitments for granting
shareholder’s loan of HK$28,635,000 (2015: HK$28,635,000)
to Southern Hill Company Limited to cover the initial costs and
expenses of undertaking the pier construction in Jiangxi, the PRC.

36. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Defined contribution scheme

The Group operates the Mandatory Provided Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes monthly
the lower of HK$1,500 or 5% of the relevant monthly payroll costs
to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
government of the PRC. The PRC subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make
the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$10,652,000 (2015:

HK$15,702,000) represents contributions payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

124

36.

RIEHR - RNEBEFT4XISA2,247,000
BT (20154 1 2,395,000/5 7T ) A £
P FAHE o 1R MR GEE 4R 728,635,000
(20154 : 28,635,000 7T ) AR R &
RTPHIERRARBIEAEEZTAR
EES ZRUIKARETH °

BRFEFIETR
SEHRRETE

REBAMERERNEER Y —THR
Bertal([aEETE)) - BB E
EERAEBZEESHAIBE  UH
SEEAIER] o AEE MM IESF B
1,500/ 703 B & A FriaK 748 2 5% (LA
BRIRERE) » MEB ZHRLEAER -

AEBZHENBARIZEEHRTH
BREEBEERABNTEZKE -
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Apart from the balances with related parties as set out in notes 25
and 28, the Group had significant transactions with related parties

during the year as follows:

Name of related party Relationship
BELER e

Connected parties
BEAL

Lee & Man Paper
EGER

A company beneficially
owned and controlled
by Mr. Lee Wan Keung

HFEREEERHER
el Id/NS]

Lee & Man Management
Company Limited

A company beneficially
owned and controlled

BXEBRBERAT by Mr. Lee Wan Keung
HPEREEERER
Nl z 7]
Professor Chan Director of the Company
Albert Sun Chi RARESE
BRFATZEHIR
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Nature of transactions

RHME

Electricity and steam fee paid

BERNEERERE

Fuel expense paid

[RERF A EE=

Rental expense paid

BEfRHEEEA

Sales of chemical products

HELTIEM

Electricity and steam fee
received

EWBERERE

Rental income received

BYAES A

Purchase of raw materials

BB R K

Acquisition of land

BETH

Management consultant
fee paid
ERNEEERE

Acquisition of a property
BEYE

Annual Report 2016 F 3R

2016
HK$'000
TET

65,741

322

1,791

15,197

34,727

1,282

892

347

5,480

BB sE25 K 28 Frhl Bk 2 B i@ A T 455k
Hh o REBERBALTRFERATETZ
BEARZIAT :

2015
HK$'000
TAT

73,3507

301

1,612

14,208

36,555

1,420

725

8,340

687
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317.

38.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES 37.

(CONTINUED)

Except for the related party transactions and balances described
above, the Group has entered into a joint venture arrangement
with Lee & Man Paper. Details of the joint venture and the other
commitment to the joint venture are set out in notes 25 and 35
respectively.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

MEXHRER(E)

Br EX Pt BEA LR B REHIN 0 R
EEEEERITVAEDEREE &
BhERHEEDE 2 HiE AR EF
BED RIE I FE25 K% 35 ©

EERHEMTETERKRERNFRZH
FWT

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Short-term employee benefits RES TR 16,240 14,194
Post-employment benefits RIKRER 29 36
16,269 14,230

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 38. ERFRWHXH

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group's acquisition
of property, plant and equipment of HK$123,094,000 (2015:
HK$352,648,000) was settled through transfer of deposits paid in
the prior years.
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December
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39. XXFEEMBLT

R20165F K2015%F 12 A31HAR G Z

2016 and 2015 are as follows: FEMBRRFBAOT
Nominal value of issued
Place of and fully paid share Attributable
Name of subsidiary incorporation  capital/paid-in capital equity interest Principal activities*
) ERITRAZRE
ME DR & 1 B 32 3t B EE/ BRRA Frib s TERB
2016 2015
Changshu Yunhong Realty PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Property holding
Limited i - RMB120,000,000 BRENE
BAEREXEARLA -1 (LU
— AR¥120,000,0007C
High Sky Chemicals Limited Labuan, Malaysia ~ Ordinary share 100% 100%  Trading of chemical
mES - HREE - US$10,000 products
BBk tIEmES
—10000% 7
Jiangsu Lee & Man Chemical PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Manufacture and sales
Limited (“Jiangsu L&M") (note) & - US$78,750,000 of industrial chemical
TEER X TERR A2 EARA products
—78,750,000% 7T HERFEIRIIER
Jiangxi Lee & Man Chemical PRC Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Manufacture and sales
Limited (note) FE - US$53,702,394 and of industrial chemical
TEEXE ITARARAAF) RMB1,314,325,092 products
EARA EERBEIXIER
—53,702394% TR
ARH1,314,325,0927
Lee & Man (International) Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding
Investment Limited B - HK$100 REER
EX (B REBRAH LER-1008T
Lee & Man Chemical Investment  British Virgin Shares — US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited Islands BiA—1%1T RER
B IRERRAT RERAES
*  The principal activities were carried out in the PRC and Hong Kong. & FEEBHEFBRRES -

note: These companies are registered in the form of wholly-owned foreign investment
enterprise.

Only Lee & Man Chemical Investment Limited is directly held by the
Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the
end of the year, or at any time during the year.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (E(ZE2016F12A31HIEFE)

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40.

41.

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank loans disclosed in note 29, net of bank balances
and cash, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
as well as issue of new debts.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 41.

41a. Categories of financial instruments

BErRRE"

REBETERER - ERAEEE
TREBRAKECEED  AREE
BLEEBERAERFRBEREAL
o AEENERRES LFERFT

AEENEARGEREEFAGEERHE
207 BEHIBR RTINS RAVIRITHE
F)RARRERFEARGERS(E2S
BEETRARSIAME) °

ARREFTERBRIBEARE - FRE
AR W —&D  EEGEEELRKAL
REFEANERAR - RIBEZNZ
& ARERERRNRE - BITHR
ARBITHEAFEEEEEANRE -

&MTR

4la. €RITAEZER

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Financial assets ZREE
Loans and receivables (including cash ERREYFIE(BEReR
and cash equivalents) ReFEER) 567,653 509,177
Financial liabilities THEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RESER AR 2RLB R 2,248,284 2,112,671
Fair value through profit or loss NHERT AR
— derivative financial instrument —TESRTA 20 42
Derivative under hedge accounting REPEFHENITET AR - 184

128




41b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, loan to a joint venture, amount due from
a joint venture, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, bank borrowings, amounts due to related companies
and derivative financial instruments. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk
(i)  Currency risk

The Group mainly operated in the PRC and the exposure
in exchange rate risks mainly arose from fluctuations of
foreign currencies, including HK dollars and US dollars
against the functional currency of the relevant group
entities. Material transactions and balances that are not
denominated in the functional currency of the relevant
entities give rise to foreign currency exposure as follows:

(i) US dollars — in terms of loan to a joint venture, bank
balances and cash, and bank borrowings.

(i) HK dollars — in terms of bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, bank borrowings and
derivative financial instrument.

Exchange rate fluctuations and market trend have
always been the concern of the Group. Management
will monitor the foreign currency exposure closely and
consider the use of hedging instruments when the need
arises.
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(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

(BZE2016F12A31HILFE)

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

41b.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets and

monetary liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount
of the Group’s monetary assets and monetary liabilities

41.

&MIAE)

M1b. YHEBREEBERBE(E)

B R (E)

() E¥RBE)

FTENNE T HEER T MR

]

RIREHR - AR EER AR
BRNAESEIUINZ BB TR

denominated in currencies other than the functional HeRmEENSRAE  HiR
currency of the relevant group entities are as follows: HEWT :
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Assets EE
HK dollars BIT 19,663 11,031
US dollars =T 97,652 100,436
Liabilities a8E
HK dollars BIT 1,048,308 1,634,111
US dollars = - 171,871
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41b. B REBREEBEREE(E)

41b.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) s EEE (&)
() Currency risk (Continued) () EkERkE)

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets and
monetary liabilities (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5%
appreciation and depreciation in the functional currency
of the relevant group entities (i.e. RMB and HK dollars)
against the above foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity
rate and represents management'’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis adjusts their translation at the
period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A
strengthening of the functional currency of the relevant
group entities against the above foreign currencies would
give rise to the following impact to post-tax profit for the
year and vice versa.

Monetary assets and liabilities: BE¥HEERAE
Increase (decrease) on post-tax FERTE
profit for the year w A IOR D)
— HK dollars —R&TT
— US dollars —%7T
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2016 2015
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

41b.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk
Non-derivative financial assets and liabilities

The Group's cash flow interest rate risks mainly relate
to its variable rate borrowings (see note 29 for details
of these borrowings). It is the Group's policy to keep its
borrowings at fixed interest rate so as to minimise the
cash flow interest rate risk. The Group's bank balances
also have exposure to cash flow interest rate risk due to
the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on
bank balances.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising
from the Group's HK dollars and US dollars denominated
borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period.
For variable rate bank borrowings, to the extent that
they are not hedged by effective instruments, and
bank balances, the analysis is prepared assuming the
stipulated change taking place at the beginning of the
financial year and held constant throughout both years
in the case of instruments that have floating rates. 10
(2015: 10) basis point and 50 (2015: 50) basis point
increase or decrease are used by the management for
the assessment of the possible change in interest rates of
variable rate bank balances and variable rate borrowings,
respectively.

If interest rates had been 10 basis point higher or lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
would increase or decrease by HK$204,000 (2015:
HK$213,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate bank
balances.
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AEEZRERMNERAREER
HEYBBRBMZEER
FHIERME29) - NER 2K
REMFEFKOBEEME - A
RRE RN XA ERD -
AEEMIRITERITE BT
RITAEERN K E) - MZAR S
RERMRRL -

AEEAEE 2 ERAENE
FHURMET RS E SRR
BEEHD - AEERSRFIE
RREBETEREELET
NETEBIERT EAREEBR
TR B R mBIRIT R S
BEEmMEL -

BURMED T

LA U D AT RAB IR FELTA
SR T BERARES BIR 2 A&
BT o BUFBRITE M
T W EESRE T AR
ITHESRETTE D - DITHEIRR
BN S FEFIRRE HIRAT
FTRR 2 BB W AR F N
B (BB MEFTE 2T
B)m&me - 10(2015% : 10)
HE T 50(2015%F : 50) &2
RER R B IR EED B2 E)
FIRAIRITIER M ERE BT
LB R AR A o

fim 71 Z 38 hngioR A 1 0B &2 B
FrBHE b o] #REEFTE
BIAREFEEZ2016F12A31
A IEFE 2 BT 5 F A58
hn sk R 4> 204,000 7T (2015
F 1 213,00087C) * L JIERA
M Z BRI BRI TR R S AR
SEEEFIRER



41b.Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(it) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Non-derivative financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis point higher or lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
would decrease or increase by HK$8,621,000 (2015:
HK$8,560,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group's
exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

Derivative financial instruments

During the year, the Group entered into several interest
rate swap contracts with banks to reduce its exposure
to interest rate risk in relation to variable rate borrowings
(see note 29 for details of these borrowings). At 31
December 2016, one outstanding interest rate swap is
accounted for as at fair value through profit or loss. The
Group is required to estimate the fair value of the interest
rate swap contract at the end of the reporting period,
which therefore exposed the Group to interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity

If forward interest rates had been 50 (2015: 50) basis
points higher and all other variable were held constant,
the Group's post-tax profit and equity would increase as
follows and vice versa:

At 31 December 2016 R2016F12H31H
At 31 December 2015 M2015F12H831H
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TSR (&)

(i) FERBREEE)

Tt BEERREE)
RO (&)

i 1 = 4 pn sk p A SOE =2 B
FrBEM A EREEFTE
BIREBEZ 2016912 31
B IEF 8 2 BRFL & 0w B i
a1 /N8,621,0007 7T (2015
4 1 8,560,000/ 7T) ° It i
RERITIERWEZBF B ML
AEBEEFERER o

TEZHITA

FR - AEBDEBITEI NS
B RFEHA D LUR KR E R
AEBB)MES ZFRER
(ZEEHFBRHE29) -
MR2016F12831H » — K
AF RS A P2 Y8R
mB— MR BEEFEE 15
B - NEEEN RS RS
AEEAmE 2 M 2R B AEE
RZEFERBRELHZATE
YELHET ©

Fl =GR

fini 32 HA A =42 )150(20154F -
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Increase
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 41. EMIR(E)

41b. B RBREERBEREE(E)

41b.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group is also exposed
to concentration of credit risk as a substantial portion of its
sales is generated from a limited number of customers. At
31 December 2016, the top five customers of the Group
accounted for about 48% (2015: 42%) of the Group's trade
receivables. The Group also granted loan and advance to a
joint venture (note 25). In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the management
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and loan/advance to a joint venture at the end of reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.
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41b.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the Group's liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.
The Group also has unutilised banking facilities (note 29) of
approximately HK$1,969,030,000 (2015: HK$890,587,000)
to meet its short-term working capital requirements. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensure compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent the interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group's liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net
cash (inflows) and outflows on derivative financial instruments
that settle on a net basis. When the amount payable is not
fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference
to the projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves
existing at the end of the reporting period. The liquidity analysis
for the Group's derivative financial instruments are prepared
based on the contractual maturities as the management
consider that the contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows of derivatives.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

41b.Financial risk management objectives and policies

®MIRE)

M1b. YHEBREEBERBE(E)

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) FEELEE(E)
Weighted
average Total
effective ~ On demand Over  undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  or0-30days  31-60days  61-90days  91-365 days 365days  cash flows amount
BBz EZR i) AR
METY 0-30% 31-60% 61-90% 91-365% 365k BEREMH REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FiEn FER TET T#R TER TR TET
As at 31 December 2016 #2016%12A318
Non-derivative financial liabilties FiitaBEE
Nonvinterest bearing ERAR - 212,786 3817 1174 14871 - 279,254 279,254
Fixed interest rate instruments i IR 446 78,389 5618 12,499 14916 - 111422 110,307
Variable interest rate instruments HZETR 332 241,104 - - 91,915 1,575,255 1,914,274 1,858,723
538,279 49,435 20,273 121,708 1,575,255 2,304,950 2,248,284
Derivative financial instruments fit2BIA
— et settiement —HEFE
Interest rate swp pilkeek 34 - - 13 1 - 20 20
Weighted
average Total
effecive  On demand Over  undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  or0-30days  31-60days  61-90days  91-365 days 365 days cash flows amount
B EERH #8 AR
TEHAH 0-30% 31-60% 61-90% 91-365% 5K RENEAT BAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
% TE#L ThR ThL ThER T THL TEL
As at 31 December 2015 M2015%12A318
Non-derivative financial iabilties Fit2BEE
Non-interest bearing ESBE = 146,431 9016 18,637 11,248 65,506 250,838 250,838
Fixed interest rate instruments TEIA 368 - - - 58,110 - 58,110 56,048
Variable interest rate instruments HZETA 260 777 23,948 4917 501,842 1,282,900 1851,384 1,805,785
147208 32964 60,554 571,200 1,348,406 2,160,332 2112671
Derivative financial instruments fiEE@IA
~ et settlement -HE5E
Interest rate sweps flEE 34 - - 81 12 2% 229 26
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41b.Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or 0-30 days” time band in
the above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2016, the
aggregate carrying amounts of these bank loans amounted
to HK$224,719,000 (2015: Nil). Taking into account the
Group's financial position, the directors do not believe that it is
probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights
to demand immediate repayment. The directors believed
that such bank loans would be repaid within one to five years
after the reporting date of 31 December 2016 in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. The following table summarises the maturity
analysis of bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan
agreements.

Weighted
average
effective
interestrate  0-30days  31-60 days
ERA=
MELHSE 0-30% 31-60%
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% TER TER
As at 31 December 2016 #2016512A31R
Bank loans BITE 225 224,719 -
As at 31 December 2015 #2015512A31R

Bank loans KITfEN = - -
The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
41c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial liabilities.

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial liabilities that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial liabilities are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial liabilities are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

41. &mTR(ZE)
Ac. BT EZAFENE

AW EREEBAREZRERE
ENREBABATFEZEESA

() RIEASHEERERAVENE
ZAEEEBMEER AR
ZAFE

AEEFDEREERERE
BERE®ERRIE R FEF
B TRAEENFAZES
REERTRABAFEZE
EARN(LEZRBZEET
ERBABUR) ©

Fair value Valuation technique(s)
Financial liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy and key input(s)
SRAE RUT Bz AFE NHERR EERTREERARE
31/12/2016 31/12/2015

Interest rate swaps classified ~ Liabilities - Liabilities — Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash
as derivative financial HK$20,000 HK$226,000 E28 flows are estimated based on
instruments in the 8- BR- forward interest rates (from
consolidated statement 20,0007 7T 226,000/ 7T observable yield curves at the
of financial position end of the reporting period)

NERETBAAR and contracted interest rates,
PRAITEERIA discounted at a rate that
paES E reflects the credit risk of various

There were no transfers between 3 levels in both years.
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41c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (but fair value disclosures are required)

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding
derivative instruments) recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,
the fair value measurements of all derivative financial
instruments of the Group are categorised into Level
2. The fair values of the financial assets and financial
liabilities included in the Level 2 category have been
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with
the most significant inputs being the discount rate that
reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

41d.Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agreements

The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial
assets and financial liabilities that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or similar agreement that covers
similar financial instruments, irrespective of whether they
are offset in the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position.
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

(For the year ended 31 December 2016)

(BZE2016F12A31HILFE)

41d.Financial assets and financial liabilities subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements

and similar agreements (Continued)

Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangements and similar agreements

As at 31 December 2016
Bank balances

As at 31 December 2015
Bank balances

As at 31 December 2016
Derivatives

As at 31 December 2015
Derivatives

#2016512A31R
RITRERR

M2015512A318
RITHR

R2016F12A31H
fTETR

R#2015F12A31R
fTETA

Gross amounts
of recognised
consolidated
financial
assets

BERGE
TREEAR
HK$'000
TR

15,367

2,697

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial
liabilities
BRRGRE
tRAGER
HK$'000

THET

(20)

(226)

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial
liabilities

set off in the
consolidated
statement of
financial
position
FARMBMRRE
RATHIE S Z
SREE
HK$'000
T

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial
assets

set off in the
statement of
financial
position
FEUBRRE
RAIHIE S 2
SREE
HK$'000
T

The disclosures set out in the tables above include derivative
contracts through the banks. The related collaterals are
included in bank balances. If a default occurs, the banks are
able to exercise the right to offset against any favourable
derivative contracts and/or the collaterals placed.
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41d.

Net amounts
of financial
assets
presented

in the
consolidated
statement of
financial
position
REMBRRAR
AEY] A
EEFE
HK$'000
TR

15,367

2,697

Net amounts
of financial
liabilities
presented

in the
consolidated
statement of
financial
position
FRMBMRRE
REY] A
BERHE
HK$'000
THET

(20)

(226)

BRIEE - IATHEERERTHER

BBz EMEERSRER
(%)

BREH - IBTRTHREFLHR
BllpiEe zMEE

Related amounts not

set off in the consolidated
statement of financial position
L ERGEBBRRRA
EHEZEEESR
Cash
Financial collateral Net
instruments received amount
2HE
$HMIA ReEAm R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET THET
(20) - 15347
(226) = 2471
Related amounts not
set off in the consolidated
statement of financial position
L ERGEBBRRRA
EHZARLE
Cash
Financial collateral Net
instruments received amount
2HE
$RMIE ReEAR R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TR
20 - -
226 - =

ERAMBBERIRBEBRITAIL
ZITERR - ARERRERER
RITAERRT - MBLHEL - RITHE
TTREEE N BEMHRITERZIT
EAH R,/ HE 7RG ER
B



42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

A summarised information statement of financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 is as

Annual Report 2016 F i

42. FLAFMBRAER

ARATA20165F12831H K2015412

A31B 2R Rt T -

follows:
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
ASSETS BE
Investments in a subsidiary i) NGIE g 54,404 57,987
Prepayments TARTFIE 172 172
Bank balances IRITAEER 339 342
54,915 58,501
LIABILITIES af&
Other payables Hfth fE {4 5K 2,890 3,485
Amount due to a subsidiary FEATBfT B8 A Bl kI8 7.813 7,087
10,703 10,572
44,212 47,929
Capital and reserves BEXK e
Share capital LN 82,500 82,500
Reserves & (38,288) (34,571)
44,212 47,929
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED EX{t THRA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ERAR AT

(For the year ended 31 December 2016) (#EZE2016F12A31HIEFE)

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

42. XLFIMBERARE)

Movement of the reserves mESH
Share
Share Contributed Translation options  Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total
ROEE EREHR EXRHE BRERE | ZiHad CEl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT AT FHT TET FHT
1 January 2015 #R2015F171H 20,307 (102,808) 8,781 163,430 80,709 170,419
Profit for the year FREF = - - - 83,362 83,362
Dividends RE - - - - (123,750)  (123,750)
Exchange differences RBEMEEZ
arising from translation BE H A= - - (3,413) - - (3,413)
Lapse of share option RRRER RS - - (3759)  (163,430) 6000  (161,189)
At31 December 2015 201512318 20307 (102,808) 1,609 - 46321 (34571)
Profit for the year FRRF - - - - 78,968 78,968
Dividends KB = = = - (82,500)  (82,500)
Exchange differences R#EmES
arising from translation BE H A= - - (185) - - (185)
At31 December2016  K2016%E12831H 20307  (102,808) 1,424 - 42,789 (38,288)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the aggregate net tangible assets of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company pursuant to a group reorganisation in
December 2001 and the nominal value of the Company's shares
issued for the acquisition.
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Financial Summary
BB

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHAT FHT T FAT FET

RESULTS E

Revenue ON 1,520,512 1,329,131 1,560,028 1,705,879 1,813,851
Profit before taxation BRA A% A 418,951 374,957 411,470 355,944 339,950
Income tax expenses FriSHisz i (57,014) (66,225) (81,359) (86,266)  (123,755)
Profit for the year FIR %A 361,937 308,732 330,111 269,678 216,195

At 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—8H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FHT FHT FAT FHET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

Total assets BERE 3,492,177 4,174,634 4,714,045 4,622,040 4,752,065
Total liabilities aEEesE (1,598,338) (2,044,026) (2,416,082) (2,275,762) (2,410,040)
Net assets BEFH 1,893,839 2,130,608 2,297,963 2,346,278 2,342,025
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED ¥EX{t THRA A

Schedule of Property

YZEE R

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Location

1 B

Area Use

[ Rz

B"EMR

Group'’s
ownership

SEEEE

Stage of completion
e A PR ER

Expected date of
completion
FRHATER B

East of Jiangnan Avenue,
South of Jinmao Road,

West of Jingang Road,
Jiagsu Yangtze River
Development Zone,
China

P EDTI#E)T
FEEILIE
RIELAR -
BIXBEIARE -
SRR IAT

16,606M?2

16,606F 5K KRiEE

Undetermined

Not yet commenced 100%

construction

NG 100%
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LEE & MAN CHEMICAL COMPANY LIMITED
8th Floor, Liven House

61-63 King Yip Street

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 23199888 Fax: (852) 2319 9333

B THERATE
BB BEERENCEHC1-635 A A E8iE
FiE 0 (852) 23199888 {HE : (852) 2319 9333
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